
24.   Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad) (H in Lacs)

Name of the 
Joint Venture/ Subsidiary

Other Partner in the JV Country Total Assets as on 
31st March, 202 0

Total Assets as on
31st March, 201 9

IIS International Infrastructure 
Services GmbH, Germany (Formerly 
Srei International Infrastructure 
Services GmbH, Germany)

i) Infrastructure Opportunities 
Singapore Pte. Ltd. (Holding 
46.92%)
ii) Various other Parties (Holding 
3.95%)

Germany    -    3,386

25.  Ratings  

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 201 9

CARE Brickwork CARE Brickwork

i) Long Term Banking facilities* CARE BBB+ CARE A+
ii) Short Term Banking Facilities* CARE A2 CARE A1+
iii) Short Term Debt Instruments *@ CARE A2 BWR A1 CARE A1+ BWR A1+
iv) NCDs / Bonds* CARE BBB+ BWR A+ CARE A+ BWR AA+
v) Unsecured  Subordinated / Tier-II   Debentures / 

Bonds*
CARE BBB BWR A+ CARE A BWR AA+

vi) Subordinated Perpetual bonds/ debentures (Tier I
Capital)

BWR BBB+

CARE: CARE Ratings Limited; Brickwork: Brickwork Ratings
*Borrowings transferred to Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as part of the
business of the Company transferred to SEFL on and from 1st October, 2019 (refer note 32 of Notes to financial statement).
@Other than Commercial Papers.

Detail of migration of ratings:  

Sl. Particulars 2019-20 2018-1 9

CARE Brickwork CARE & Brickwork

i) Long Term Banking facilities from A+ to BBB+ N.A. Nil
ii) Short Term Banking Facilities from A1+ to A2 N.A. Nil
iii) Short Term Debt Instruments from A1+ to A2 from A1+ to  A1 Nil
iv) NCDs / Bonds from A1+ to  BBB+ from AA+ to  A+ Nil
v) Unsecured  Subordinated / Tier-II   Debentures / Bonds from A+ to BBB from AA+ to  A+ Nil

26.  Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation Company (SC) / Reconstruction Company (RC) for Asset Reconstruction
(H in Lacs)

Sl. Particulars 2019-20 2018 -19

i) No. of accounts  -    2 
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC  -    38,000
iii) Aggregate consideration  -  38,000
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier 

years
 -  -

v) Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value  -  -

27.  Details of Security receipts held by Company is as below:   (H in Lacs)

Particulars Backed by NPAs sold by
the Banks/ FIs/NBFC's as

underlying

Backed by NPAs sold by other
banks/ financial institut ions/ 

non-banking financial companies
as underlying

Total

Particulars 2019-20 2018-1 9 2019-20 2018-1 9 2019-20 2018-1 9

Under Investment  -    27,968  -    -  -    27,968 
Under Loans  -    20,400  -    -  -    20,400 

ANNEXURE I TO NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Refer Note 43 (Contd.)

Disclosure of details as required in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
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28.  Details of Assignment transactions undertaken (H in Lacs)

Sl. Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

i) No. of accounts  -    -   
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold  -    -   
iii) Aggregate consideration  -    -   
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier

years
 -    -   

v) Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value  -    -   

29.  Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC

The Company has not exceeded the Prudential exposure limits during the current year and previous year in respect of exposure
towards single borrower and group of borrowers.

30.  Unsecured Advances

Unsecured advance as at 31st March, 2020 is H Nil (Previous year H 2,105 Lacs) and it includes advances amounting to H Nil (Pre-
vious year H Nil) for which intangible securities such as charge over rights, licences, authority, etc., has been taken as collateral.

31.  Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company received a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) on 1st August, 1998 to commence / carry 
on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution (‘NBFI’) and was subsequently classified as Infrastructure Finance Company
vide Certificate of Registration dated 11th May, 2010. The Company is also a Public Financial Institution (PFI) notified under section 
4A of the Companies Act, 1956.

32.  Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

No penalites has been imposed by RBI and other regulators during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 

2019.

33.  Draw Down from Reserves

Details of draw down from Reserves is disclosed in Note No. 22 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

34.  Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Domestic Overseas Domestic Overseas

Name of SPV sponsored Nil Nil Nil Nil

35.  Details of Financing of Parent Company Products

Financing of Parent Company Products during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is Nil (Previous year Nil).

36.  The Company has not done any Securitisation during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019.

37.  Customer Complaints

Sl. Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
b) No. of complaints received during the year Nil Nil
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year Nil Nil
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil

38.  Disclosures relating to fraud in terms of the notification issued by Reserve Bank of India vide DNBS/2016-17/49 Master  

       Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17

During the year ended 31st March, 2020,  no fraud was committed and reported to the RBI.

ANNEXURE I TO NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Refer Note 43 (Contd.)

Disclosure of details as required in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking

Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”), its associate and its 
trust, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated Ind AS
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate Ind AS financial
statements and on the other financial information of the 
subsidiaries, associate and trust, the aforesaid consolidated Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133
of the Act, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its
associate and trust as at 31st March, 2020, their consolidated
profit, their other comprehensive income, their consolidated

changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group, its associate and trust in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and Rules thereunder,and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

To the Members of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Sr.

No.
Key audit matter(s) How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Impairment loss allowance of loans to 

customers - (as reported in the Independent 

Auditor’s Report of Srei Equipment Finance

Limited (‘SEFL’, a wholly owned subsidiary)) :

Impairment loss allowance of loans and
advances (“Impairment loss allowance”) 
is a key audit matter as the subsidiary has
significant credit risk exposure. The value of 
loans and advances on the balance sheet 
is significant and there is a high degree of 
complexity and judgment involved for the
subsidiary in estimating individual and
collective credit impairment provisions and
write-offs against these loans. The subsidiary’s

Principal Audit Procedures:

The Principal Auditors have used the work of Component Auditors (we are
also the joint auditor of the Component). The Component Auditors have
reported that they have followed the following procedures :

�� {����
����	�� �
 ��� 	������� ������� ���	������� ������� �� ����	�����
loss allowance.

�� |

�

	�� \������ ��� 	���	����� ����������� �
�� �� ��� 
��
	�	���
is in accordance with the assumptions and methodology approved
by the Board of Directors of the subsidiary, which is based on and in
compliance with Ind AS 109, “Financial instruments”.

�� |

�

	�� ��� �������� �
 ��� 
��
	�	��� ������	�� ��� ��
	�	�	�� �

default, Probability of Default, Loss Given Default and incorporation of 
forward-looking information for the calculation of ECL.
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Sr. 

No.
Key audit matter(s) How our audit addressed the key audit matter

model to calculate expected credit loss (“ECL”)
is inherently complex and judgment is applied
in determining the three-stage impairment
model (“ECL Model”), including the selection
and input of forward-looking information.
ECL provision calculations require the use
of large volumes of data. The completeness
and reliability of data can significantly impact 
the accuracy of the modelled impairment
provisions. The accuracy of data flows and the
implementation of related controls are critical
for the integrity of the estimated impairment
provisions.

�� }�
�	�� ��� ���	��	�	�� �
 ��� ���� 	����
 ��� ������� ����������
controls.

�� �����	�� ��� 
���� ���

	
	���	�� �
 �� ��� ������� 
���� ���� �
 ���
definition of default.

�� ~��	���	�� ��� ��� ����� ��� ��������	���

�� ��������	�� ��� ��� ����	
	�� �������� 
�� � 
������� 
������

�� �����	�� ��� ����	
	�� �� ���� |

��
 �
 ��� ������ ������	�	��� |

��
Classification and Presentation (“IRACP”) norms as required under RBI
circular dated March 13, 2020.

       For loans and advances which are written off during the year under audit,
reading and understanding the methodology and policy laid down and 
implemented by the subsidiary in this regard along with its compliance
on sample basis.

2. Key Information Technology (IT) systems with 

impact on financial reporting process - (as

reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report

of SEFL, a wholly owned subsidiary) :

The IT systems within the subsidiary form 
a critical component of the subsidiary’s
financial reporting activities. It impacts account 
balances, certain operational and financial 
processes like revenue recognition on Loans.
There is a high dependence on the IT systems 
due to large volume of transactions that are
processed daily

Principal Audit Procedures:

The Principal Auditors have used the work of Component Auditors (we are
also the joint auditor of the Component). The Component Auditors have
reported that they have followed the following procedures :

Our approach of testing IT General Controls (ITGC) and IT Automated
Controls (ITAC) is risk based and business centric. Our audit procedures
focused on the IT infrastructure and applications relevant to financial
reporting including:

�� }�
�	�� ��� �}�� ��
�� �� ��� ���������
 
��� �
 ����������

�
~��	�	��� �����	
	���	���|������	���	�� ��� |�����	
��	��� |��������
Integrity and Accountability.

�� ���	�\	�� ������� ����
 
��� �
 {
�� ����������� ������
����������� ���	���� ����������� �	���� ������
� {������ ���
�������	��� |��	!~	��
� �����
���
� ��
��� ��	��������� ��� �������	���
Backup and Restoration, Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery,
Capacity Monitoring and Service Level Agreement etc.

�� ���
���	�� ��
�
 �
 �������
 �� 
����� ��
	
 �	�����	�� �����
compensatory controls wherever applicable) on the IT application 
controls and IT Department manual controls in the system.

�� }�
�	�� ��� ������� ���	������� �
	�� ���	��
 �����	"��
 
��� �

	�"�	��� ���	�\ �
 ����������	��� ������� ������
� ��
�����	�� ��� ��!
performance.

�� }�
�	�� 
�\ �������
 �
	�� �����	�� ��
�	�� �����	"��� �� ���� ���"����
samples of instances for our tests

3. Accuracy of recognition, measurement,

presentation and disclosures of revenues and

other related balances in view of adoption

of Ind AS 116 “Leases” (new accounting

standard)-(reported by us as auditor of 

Holding Company and in the Independent

Auditor’s Report of SEFL, a wholly owned 

subsidiary) :

Ind AS 116 Leases replaces the existing
standard Ind AS 17 and specifies how the
Holding Company and the subsidiary will

Principal Audit Procedures:

The audit procedures followed by us and the principal audit procedure
reported by the Component Auditors (we are also the joint auditor of the
Component) is given below:

�� |

�

�� ��� ��
	�� ��� 	����������	�� �
 ��� �������
 �����	�	�� ��
the determination of the Ind AS 116 transition impact disclosures;

�� |

�

�� \������ ��� �������	�� ������	�� ���
�
 	
 ���
	
���� \	��
the definitions of Ind AS 116 including factors such as lease term and
measurement principles.
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Sr.

No.
Key audit matter(s) How our audit addressed the key audit matter

recognize, measure, present and disclose 
leases. The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases
unless the lease term is 12 months or less
or the underlying asset has a low value.
Accordingly, the Holding Company and the 
subsidiary has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases with
effect from 01.04.2019. The implementation
of Ind AS 116 is considered a key audit matter 
due to the judgments needed in establishing
the underlying key assumptions

�� ~��	
	�� ��� �������� �
 ��� �������	�� ���
� ���� �� �����	�� �
representative sample of leases to original contract or other supporting
information, and checked the integrity and mechanical accuracy of the
Ind AS 116 calculations for each lease sampled through recalculation of 
the expected Ind AS 116 adjustment.

�� |

�

�� \������ ��� �	
���
���
 \	��	� ��� 
	����	�� 
��������
 ���
appropriate in light of the requirements of Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

�� ���
	����� ����������

 �� ��
�	�� ��� ������	�	��	�� �� ��� ������

operating lease commitments and by investigating key service contracts
to assess whether they contained a lease under Ind AS 116.

4. Valuation of unquoted financial assets at fair 

value - (reported by us as auditor of Holding 

Company):

The valuation of the Holding Company’s 
unquoted financial assets held at fair value
is a key audit matter due to the significance 
of the amount and complexity involved in the 
valuation process.

Management makes significant judgements 
because of the complexity of the techniques 
and assumptions used in valuing some of the 
level 3 investment securities given the limited
external evidence and unobservable market
data available to support the Company’s
valuations. 

The valuation of the level 3 investment 
securities are dependent on market conditions
and key assumptions made. The determination
of these assumptions is complex and requires
the exercise of management judgement.

Principal Audit Procedures:

We have performed the following audit procedures in order to obtain
sufficient audit evidence:

�� |

�

�� ��� ������	�� ����������	�
 	�����	�� �������	�� �

independent external valuers’ competence, capability and objectivity.

�� |

�

�� ��� ���
��������

 �
 ��� �

����	��
 ��
�� �� ���
knowledge of the business and industry.

�� �������� �� � 
����� ��
	
� ��� �������� ��� ��������� �
 ��� 	����
data used.

5. Valuation of unquoted financial assets held

at fair value–(as reported in the Independent 

Auditor’s Report of SEFL, a wholly owned

subsidiary):

The impairment review of unquoted equity
instruments and debt, with a carrying value 
of ` 646.53 crore, is considered to be a risk
area due to the size of the balances as well
as the judgmental nature of key assumptions,
which may be subject to management override. 
The carrying value of such unquoted equity
instruments and debt is at risk of recoverability.

The fair value of such instruments cannot be
readily determined as these are not quoted
in the stock exchanges and the net worth 
of the underlying entities has significantly 
eroded. The estimated recoverable amount
is subjective due to the inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting and discounting future
cash flows.

Principal Audit Procedures:

The Principal Auditors have used the work of Component Auditors (we are
also the joint auditor of the Component). The Component Auditors have
reported that they have followed the following procedures :

Besides obtaining an understanding of the subsidiary’s management’s
processes and controls with regard to testing the impairment of the
unquoted equity instruments in loss making subsidiaries and joint ventures.
Our procedures included the following:

�� ���	�\�� ��� ���������� �
 ����� �� 	�� �

���� 	��
 ���
appropriateness of the valuation model used.

�� �������� ��� ��������
 �

����	��
 \	�� ���������� ���������
 	�
relation to key inputs such as long-term growth rates and discount rates.

�� |

�

�� ��� �������	�����

 �
 ��� 
�����
� ��
� 
��\
 \	��	� ���
budgeted period based on their understanding of the business and
sector experience.

�� ����	��� ~�����	�� ������
 
��� 	���������� ������
 �� 
����� ��
	
�
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Sr. 

No.
Key audit matter(s) How our audit addressed the key audit matter

6. Fair Valuation of Claims Receivables - (as

reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report

of SEFL, a wholly owned subsidiary):

Claims Receivables amounts to ` 51,015
Lacs as at 31st March, 2020 and has been
recognised as financial assets measured at Fair
~���� ������� ���
	� �� ��

 	� ��� 
��
	�	����

financial statements. 

Refer Note No. 8 to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

Determination of fair value and recoverability
of the Claims Receivables has been identified 
as a Key Audit Matter as the same is based
on unobservable inputs and subjective 
assumptions.

Principal Audit Procedures:

The Principal Auditors have used the work of Component Auditors (we are
also the joint auditor of the Component). The Component Auditors have
reported that they have followed the following procedures : 

Our audit approach consist of the test of design and operating effectiveness
of internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

�� ����	�	�� ���	� ��	����� 	� ��
���� �
 ��� �������
 ���� ��� ����������
judgments and the assumptions-setting processes including judgments
regarding expected realization date and value.

�� |

�

	�� ��� �������	�� ����� ��� �	�	����� ������
� ����	�	�� ���
underlying agreements and assessing the progress of the claims during
the period.

�� �������	�� ��� ���������	�
� �����	�	�	�
� ��� ������	�	�� �
 ��� ��������
legal counsels.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements:

1. We draw attention to Note No. 46 to the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, which explains that the 
Holding Company has accounted for the slump exchange 
transaction and consequently de- recognized the relevant 
assets and, liabilities, income and expenses in its books 
of account, pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement
(‘BTA’) with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Srei Equipment
Finance Limited, with effect from October 1, 2019, after 
receiving the approval of the shareholders, debenture 
trustees, few lenders, stock exchanges and in-principle
approval from some of the domestic lenders including
lead banks. The consent or otherwise, of other lenders is
still awaited. In terms of the BTA, the Holding Company 
was allotted 1,93,56,415 equity shares of ` ���! ����
at a premium of ` ����! ��� 
���� �
 ���� �
 ������
�

consideration of ` 950 Crores and has de-recognised
financial assets of ` 12,521 Crores, non-financial assets 
of ` 844 Crores, financial liability of ` 12,361 Crores and
non-financial liability of ` 30 Crores as on October 1, 2019.
The Holding Company has also taken expert legal and 
accounting opinions which confirms that the accounting
treatment so given is in accordance with the relevant Ind 
AS and the underlying guidance and framework and we 
have relied on the same.

2. We draw attention to Note No. 47 to the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, which explains that the extent 
�� \�	�� ��~�� !�� ������	� \	�� 	����� ��� ����	��
Company’s operations, investments in subsidiaries and 
financial results is dependent on future developments, 
which cannot be ascertained at this point of time.

3. We draw attention to Note No. 48 to the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, which has been emphasized by 
the auditors’ of the subsidiary company by stating the 
following in their audit report:-

“We draw attention to Note No. 50 to the Ind AS financial 
statements, which states that the Company has applied for 
�������	�� �� �����\	��
 	� ���������� \	�� ��~��!��
Regulatory Package announced by RBI and the approval
for the same is under process with a few lenders. In view of 
this, such deferment of dues has not been considered as 
default by the Company.”

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Holding Company’s Directors’
Report including Annexures to Directors’ Report and Report 
on Corporate Governance, but does not include the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements,consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The above
mentioned other information are expected to be made available
to us after the dateof this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
does not cover the other information and accordingly, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated IndAS financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation and presentation of these consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the

221Annual Report 2019-20



Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate and 
trust in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group, its associate 
and the trustees of the trust are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
����	
	��
 �
 ��� |�� ������ �������� �������	��
 ����	������
��
safeguarding the assets of the Group, its associate and trust 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and its associate and the trustees of the trust
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group, its
associate and trust to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and its associate and the trustees of the trust are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group, its associate and trust.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidatedInd AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance
with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

�� �����	
� �nd assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

�� ����	� �� �����
����	�� �
 	������� ������� �������� ��
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
�������	��� 	� ��� �	����
�����
� {���� 
���	�� ������
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, have adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

�� �������� ��� �������	�����

 �
 �������	�� ���	�	�
 �
��
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

�� �������� �� ��� �������	�����

 �
 �����������
 �
� �

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group, its associate
and trust to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group, its associate and trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

�� �������� ��� ������� ���
�����	��� 
�������� ��� ������� �

the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

�� ����	� 
�

	�	��� �������	��� ���	� ��	����� ������	�� ���
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group, its associate and trust of which we are the
	���������� ��� 	� �����	�� ���	���� �� �����

 �� ��	�	��
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial

��������
 �
 \�	�� \� ��� ��� 	���������� ���	������	��
auditor. For the other entities included in the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the 
Holding Company of which we are the independent auditor 
and the other entity of which we are the independent joint 
auditor included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of 10
subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial statements reflect 
total assets of ` 6,784 Lacs and net assets of ` 2,743
Lacs as at 31st March, 2020,total revenues of ` 2,288 
Lacs and net cash inflows amounting to ` 85 Lacs for the 
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the management of 
the Holding Company and our opinion on the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiariesand our report in terms of section 143(3) of 
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is 
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes 
amount in respect of a subsidiary whose Ind AS financial 
statements reflects total assets of ` 37,03,874 Lacs and
net assets of ` 3,92,022 Lacs as at 31st March, 2020, 
total revenues of ` 5,07,943 Lacs and net cash inflows
amounting to ` 14,328 Lacs for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.This Ind AS financial statements have been 
���	��� �� �
 ����� \	�� ����� ���	���� ���� ��� � ���� �

joint auditors and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and
our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, insofar as
it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the 
report of the joint auditors. 

b) We did not audit the financial statementsof 1 trust whose 
financial results reflect total assets of `  1 lac  and net
assets of ` Nil as at 31st March, 2020, total revenues of 
` Nil and net cash inflows amounting to ` Nil Lacs for the 
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS
financial statements also includes Group’s share of net
profit of ` Nil for the year ended 31st March, 2020, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
in respect of 1 associate whose financial statements have 
not been audited by us. These financial statements are
�����	���� ���� ���� ����	
	�� �� ��� ���
���
 �
 ��� ���
��
management of the associate and furnished to us by the 
management of the Holding Company and our opinion
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of the trust and the associate and our report in
terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid trust and the associate is based solely 
on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion 
and according tothe information and explanations given 
to us by the management of the Holding Company, these
financial statements are not material to the Group including 
its associate and trust.

The financial statements of a foreign associate company 
of the Holding Company has been prepared as per IFRS,
generally followed in the country of incorporation of 
the foreign associate company. As explained by the
management in Note No.45 of the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, since there are no material
differences between such financial statements as per IFRS 
and as per lnd AS, no adjustments have been considered 
necessary and it has been relied upon by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind ASfinancial statements
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below,is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done by and the reports 
of the other auditors and the unaudited financial statements 
����	
	�� �� ��� ��������������
��� �
 ��� ��
����	�� ���	�	�
�

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit
and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on
separate Ind AS financial statements and the other financial
information of subsidiaries, associate and trust, as noted in the
Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
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from our examination of those books and the reports of the
other auditors;

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. The matter described under the Emphasis of Matter 
section above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect
on the functioning of the Group, its associate and trust;

f. On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors 
of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none
of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in
India, is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
Act;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated 
in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure”;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act:

According to the information and explanations given to us 
and records of the Holding Company examined by us and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
	����������� 	� ���	�� ��� �������	�� ���������	�� ��	��
provided to the directors during the year by the Holding 
Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act, 

������ 
�� ��� �������	�� ���������	�� ��	�� ����	��� ��
��� ���	���� �
 ��� ����	�� ������� ��� ���	����� ~	��!
���	���� � �����	�� �	������ �
 � 
��
	�	��� ������� �	���
SEFL) incorporated in India, which is in excess of the prescribed
limits mandated by this section. The Holding Company and
the subsidiary company (i.e. SEFL) has represented that they
will take an approval from shareholders through a Special
Resolution in the ensuing Annual General Meeting - refer Note
No. 39(F) to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group, its associate and trust– Refer Note
no.32 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(ii) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if 
any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
��|� �	�� ���	
����	��  �����¡¢����������

Manoj Daga

Partner
Membership No.048523
{�� £ ¢����¡¢�|||||}��¢¤

Place: Mumbai
����£ ���� ¢�� ¢�¢�
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of 

section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited
(“Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31st March,
2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors, in terms of 
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred toin paragraph (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited on the consolidatedInd AS financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020]
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us and based on consideration
of reporting of other auditors as mentioned in Other Matters
paragraph below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have,
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it
relates to ten  subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports
of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India and
in relation to one subsidiary company, which is a company
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report
�	��� �� �
 ����� \	�� ����� ���	���� ������� � ���� �
 ��	��
auditors of such company incorporated in India.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
��|� �	�� ���	
����	��  �����¡¢����������

Manoj Daga

Partner
Membership No.048523
{�� £ ¢����¡¢�|||||}��¢¤

Place: Mumbai
����£ ���� ¢�� ¢�¢�
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
(` in Lacs)

Particulars Note No
As at

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

ASSETS

(1) Financial Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2  40,059  31,293
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 3  1,31,980  1,71,208
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments 4  29,992  8,242
(d) Receivables

(I) Trade Receivables 5.1  18,148  28,236 
(II) Other Receivables 5.2  -  -

(e) Loans 6  29,03,182  28,14,403 
(f) Investments 7  1,09,120  2,11,853 
(g) Other Financial Assets 8  93,211  91,876

(2) Non-Financial Assets

(a) Inventories  -    - 
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 10  20,896  14,109
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 11  23,261  19,417
(d) Investment Property 12  1,765  1,801
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 13  3,66,466  5,01,178 
(f) Right-of-use Assets  3,371  - 
(g) Capital Work-in-Progress  233  489 
(h) Goodwill on Consolidation  766  766 
(i) Other Intangible Assets 14  452  570 
(j) Other Non-Financial Assets 9  56,423  1,25,205 

TOTAL ASSETS  37,99,325  40,20,646 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

(1) Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative Financial Instruments 4  4,146  5,725 
(b) Payables

(I) Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

15  -    - 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

15  1,13,432  1,68,692 

(c) Debt Securities 16  2,62,725  3,61,352 
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 17  26,84,368  26,69,115 
(e) Subordinated Liabilities 18  2,84,811  3,35,611 
(f) Lease  Liabilities  3,563  - 
(g) Other Financial Liabilities 19  30,198  48,856 

(2) Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Provisions 20  2,015  2,096
(b) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 21  11,825  18,069 

(3) (a) Equity

(b) Equity Share Capital 22  50,309  50,324 
Other Equity 23  3,51,929  3,60,793
Non-controlling Interests  4  13 

 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  37,99,325  40,20,646 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 1 to 49

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
��|� �	�� ���	
����	��  �� ���¡¢����������

Manoj Daga  Hemant Kanoria Shyamalendu Chatterjee

Partner Chairman Director
Membership No. 048523

   Rakesh Kumar Bhutoria Sandeep Kumar Sultania Sandeep Lakhotia

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

�����	� ¢��� ����� ¢�¢�� � � ¥������� ¢��� ����� ¢�¢�
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The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
This is the  Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
��|� �	�� ���	
����	��  �� ���¡¢����������

Manoj Daga Hemant Kanoria Shyamalendu Chatterjee
Partner  Chairman Director
Membership No. 048523
      
    Rakesh Kumar Bhutoria Sandeep Kumar Sultania Sandeep Lakhotia
   Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
�����	� ¢��� ����� ¢�¢�� � ¥������� ¢��� ����� ¢�¢�

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020
((` in Lacs))

Particulars Note No
Year ended

31st March, 2020
Year ended

31st March, 2019,
Revenue from Operations

(i) Interest Income 24  3,86,823  4,21,368 
(ii) Dividend Income  91  85 
(iii) Rental Income  1,20,710  1,27,989 
(iv) Fees and Commission Income  11,579  11,621 
(v) Net gain on fair value changesg g 25  37,119  9,274 
(vi) Net gain on derecognition of financial instrumentsg g  30,370  7,638 
(vii) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under fair value 

through profit or lossg p
 18,049  28,344 

(viii) Sale of Traded Goods  -    1,081
(ix) Sale of Services  -    30,519
(x) Others  6,741,  17,055 ,
(I) Total Revenue from Operations  6,11,482  6,54,974 
(II) Other Income 26  (14,038),  (3,287),
(III) Total Income (I+II)  5,97,444  6,51,687 

Expenses
(i) Finance Costs 27  3,78,947  3,58,697 
(ii) Fees and Commission Expensep  3,451  3,987
(iii) Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised 

cost
 28,597  14,939 

(iv) Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net)p 28  41,235  47,366 
(v) Cost of Traded Goods  -    1,024
(vi) Cost of Services  -    24,098 
(vii) Employee Benefits Expensesp y p 29  19,613  26,035 
(viii) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expensep p p  78,502  81,510 
(ix) Administrative and Other Expensesp 30  22,096  27,784 
(x) ��

 � \�	��!�

 �� ����

�

�� |

��
 ��� |

��
 ��"�	��� 	� 
��	

���	��

of debt
 12,054  7,544

(IV) Total Expenses (IV)  5,84,495  5,92,984 
(V) Profit before Exceptional Items & Tax (III - IV)  12,949  58,703 
�~�� |���
������ �� �	
��
��� � ��

��	�� �
 ���
	�	��	�
 ��� |

��	���  1,222  8,085
(VII) Profit Before Tax (V+VI)  14,171  66,788 
�~���� Tax Expense:

    (a) Current Tax  4,347  15,158 
    (b) Deferred Tax  949  2,924

(IX) Profit After Tax but before Loss of Associates (VII-VIII)  8,875  48,706 
(X) ����� �
 ���
	�� ���

� �
 |

��	���
  -    (28)
(XI) Profit After Tax (IX+X)  8,875  48,678 
(XII) Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
�������� �����
������� ��	�
� ���

�
� �� ��
	��� ����
	� ����  2  (29)
�������� ��	�
� ���

�
� �� �"�	�� ��
�������
 ������� �����
          Comprehensive Incomep

 (20,300)  (16,494)

     (c) Tax related to above  4,724  3,858 
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
     (a) Effective portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments 
          in a cash flow hedgeg

 (945)  (643)

     (b) Gains on fair valuation of loans  3,871  6,290 
     (c) Tax related to above  (1,023)  (1,976)
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (XII)  (13,671)  (8,994)

(XIII) Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (XI+XII)  (4,796)  39,684 
(XIV) Profit attributable to:

-Owners of the parentp  8,884  48,685 
-Non-controlling interestg  (9)  (7)

(XV) Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) attributable to:
-Owners of the parentp  (13,671)  (8,994)
-Non-controlling interestg  -    -   

(XVI) Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) attributable to:
-Owners of the parentp  (4,787)  39,691 
-Non-controlling interestg  (9)  (7)

(XVII) Earnings per Equity share (Basic and Diluted) (in `) 31  1.76  9.68 

(Par Value ` 10/- per Equity Share)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.g g 1 to 49
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as at 31st March, 2020
(` in Lacs)

Particulars
Year ended

31st March, 2020

Year ended

31st March, 2019

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Profit Before Tax  14,171 66,788
Adjustments for :

 �� ������	
�� 
�	� ����� ���	�� � ��

 (35,101)  (8,578)
 �� ���	�� � ��

 �� ��������	�	�� �
 ��������� ����� ��� �"�	�����  2,372  1,211
Interest on Income Tax Refund (869)  (1,118)
Liabilities No Longer Required written back 8,136  87
Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) 41,235  47,366 
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense  78,502  81,510 
 �� ���	�� � ��

 �� ��������	�	�� �
 �	����	�� ��
�������
 ����� �����	
�� ��
� ��������  (1,773)  7,301
����	��������	��!�

 �� |

��
 ��"�	��� 	� 
��	

���	�� �
 ���� 12,054  7,544
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,18,727  2,02,111

Changes in Working Capital

Adjustments for :

�������
�� � ������
� 	� }���� ����	�����
 ��� �����
 |

��
  62,017  65,857 
�������
�� � ������
� 	� ����
 |

��
 (1,24,301)  4,465
�������
�� � ������
� 	� ��������� - -
������
� � �������
�� 	� }���� �������
 ��� �����
 �	��	�	�	�
 (84,683)  (81,406)
�������
�� � ������
� 	� ����� ���� �������
 39,228  (53,726)
Cash Generated / (used) in operations 10,988  1,37,301

Direct Taxes Paid (net of refund) (11,357) (3,367)
Net Cash (used in) / generated from Operating Activities (369)  1,33,934

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities

������
� �
 ��������� ����� ��� �"�	������ ���	��� ����!	�!������

� ������	��� |

��
 (28,833)  (1,05,727)
�������
 
��� ���� �
 ��������� ����� ��� �"�	������������	��� �

��
 84,182  25,104 
�������
�� � ������
� 	� ����
�����
 ������ ���� ���
	�	��	�
� 88,090  (32,324)
Sale of Subsidiaries - 168
Net Cash (used in) / generated from Investing Activities 1,43,439  (1,12,779)

C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities

���������� �
� � �������
 
��� 	

����� �
 ���� 
����	�	�
 �	�����	�� 
�����	����� ����
securities) (Net)

 (1,49,541)  69,323 

���������� �
� � �������
 
��� ����	�� ���	��� 
��	�	�	�
 � ��� 1,88,870  (24,031)
���������� �
� � �������
 
��� ����� �����\	��
 � ���  (1,73,617)  (63,728)
Dividend Paid (including Corporate Dividend Tax)  (16)  (6,065)
Net Cash (used in) / generated from Financing Activities (1,34,304)  (24,501)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,766  (3,346)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 31,293  34,639 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 40,059  31,293

Net Cash (used in) / generated from Operating Activities includes:

Interest Received 3,84,012  4,24,063 
Interest Paid (4,00,834)  (3,52,274)
Dividend Received 91  85

 (` in Lacs)

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
As at

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

(a) Cash on hand 15  308
(b) Balances with Banks - in Current Account 39,942 30,849
(c) Fixed Deposits with original maturity period less than three months 102 136

40,059  31,293

Explanations:

1. The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7
'Statement of Cash Flows'.

¢�� ����	��
 ���� 
	����
 ���� ���� ����������� ��������� \������� ����

��� �� ���
��� �� ��� ������� ����¦
 ���

	
	���	���

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
��|� �	�� ���	
����	��  �� ���¡¢����������

Manoj Daga Hemant Kanoria Shyamalendu Chatterjee

Partner  Chairman Director
Membership No. 048523     
    Rakesh Kumar Bhutoria Sandeep Kumar Sultania Sandeep Lakhotia

    Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

�����	� ¢��� ����� ¢�¢�� � � ¥������� ¢��� ����� ¢�¢�
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1. Basis of preparation

� }�� ���
��	����� 
	����	�� 
��������
 ������
 �� ��
� ���	 ��
��
�������� �	����� �	�	��� ���� §�������¨� ��� 	�
 
��
	�	��	�

(together hereinafter referred to as “Group”), associate and Trust. The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant Accounting
Standards. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Group are discussed
in Note 1.23 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.The management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates would be recognised in the periods in which the 
��
���
 ��� ���\� � �����	��	
���

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh,
except when otherwise indicated.

Comparative information has been restated to accord with changes in presentations made in the current year, except where
otherwise stated.

1.2. Basis of Consolidation

(i) The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company i.e. its subsidiaries. It also includes the Group’s share of profits in associate and interest in trust that are
consolidated in a manner as explained below.

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to the variable returns of the entity and the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The results of subsidiaries and associate acquired or disposed off during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective 
date of disposal, as appropriate.

(i) The financial statements of the subsidiary companies, associate company and Trust used in the consolidation are drawn
up to the same reporting date as of theCompany i.e. year ended 31stMarch , 2020 and are prepared based on the accounting
policies consistent with those used by theCompany.

(ii) The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS 110- ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’ as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

(iii) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the Group and trust has been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra-group balances and intra-group transactions have been fully
eliminated except where losses are realised.

�� � }�� ����

 �
 ��
� �� ��� ������� �
 	�
 	���
�����
 	� ��� 
��
	�	��� ������	�
 ��� ���
� ���� 	�
 
���� �
 �"�	���
�����
 �
 ��� 
��
	�	��� �����������
�� �� ��� ����
 �� \�	�� ��� 	���
�����
 	
 ����� 	
 ������	
�� �
 ©����\	���
��	�� �� �

�� 	� ��� ���
��	����� 
	����	�� 
��������
� |�������	����� \���� ��� 
���� �
 �"�	��������
 �
 �� ��� ���� �

investment is in excess of cost of investment of the Company, it is recognised under ‘Other Equity’, in the consolidated
financial statements.

�� � }�� �	

������ ���\��� ��� �������
 
��� �	
��
�� �
 	���
����� 	� 
��
	�	����}��
� ��� ��� �����	�� ������ �
 	�

assets and liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss as profit or loss on disposal 
of subsidiary.

231Annual Report 2019-20



d) Minority interest, if any, in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary consists of the amount of equity attributable to the 
minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary company and 
further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments as stated above.

e) Investment made by the Company in an associate company is accounted under the equity method, in accordance with 
��� ���	�� |������	�� �������� ¢� �� ©����
�����
 	� |

��	���
 ��� ��	�� ~������
��

� �	�� }�� 
��
	�	�����

��	��� ������	�
 ���
	����� 	� ��� ���
��	����� 
	����	�� 
��������
 ��� �
 ����\£

���
	�	��	�
 � ����!��\� ���
	�	��	�
 Country of Origin Share of ownership 
interest as at 31st 
March, 2020 (%)

Share of ownership 
interest as at 31st 
March, 2019 (%)

Srei Capital Markets Limited India 100 100

Trinity Alternative  Investment Managers Ltd (Formerly 
Srei Alternative Investment Managers Limited)

India 100 100

Controlla Electrotech Private Limited India 100 100

Srei Mutual Fund Asset Management Private Limited India 100 100

Srei Mutual Fund Trust Private Limited India 100 100

Srei Insurance Broking Private Limited India 100 100

Bengal Srei Infrastructure Development Limited India 51 51

��������� ��
�����	�� }��������� ~������ �������	
�

Limited (Subsidiary of Srei Alternative Investment
Managers Limited)

India 51 51

Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited
(Subsidiary of Srei Alternative Investment Managers 
Limited)

India 51 51

Srei Finance Limited (Formerly Srei Asset Finance 
Limited)

India 100 100

Srei Equipment Finance Limited India 100 100

Associates:

� ~	����� ¥����� �	�	��� �
������� ����� �!~	�����
Limited) (ceased to be an Associate w.e.f. 01.01.2020)

India - 49.47

IIS International Infrastructure Services GmbH,
Germany (Formerly Srei International Infrastructure 
Services GmbH, Germany)

Germany 49.13 49.13

Trusts:

Srei Mutual Fund Trust India 100* 100*

* holding % of Corpus

The accounting policies for some specific items are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements. Other
significant accounting policies and details of significant accounting assumptions and estimates are set out below in Note No. 
1.3 to 1.23.

1.3. Presentation of Financial Statements

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group, associate and trust are presented as per Schedule III (Division III) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and 
financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the
following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

			� }�� ����� �
 	�
������� �� ���������� �
 ��� ����� ������ 	�
 �����������	�


Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements (e.g. International Swaps and Derivative Association 
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232 Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited



Arrangements) are presented net if all the above criteria are met.

}��
� 
	����	�� 
��������
 \��� �������� 
�� 	

�� 	� ���������� \	�� ��� ��
����	�� �
 ��� ����� �
 �	������
 �� ¢��� �����
2020.

1.4. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, other relevant provision of the Act and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI”).

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise
stated.

1.5. Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the consideration transferred in the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and contingent 
liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured 
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying value of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying value of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit in proportion to the carrying value of each asset in the unit.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable 
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal.

1.6. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

Revenue from Operations is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as stated herein
below:

(a) Interest income from financial assets is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) to the gross carrying
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discussed in Note No. 1.19.3.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows having impact on EIR are recognised as interest
income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.
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as discussed in Note No. 1.19.3.

(c) Interest Income on credit impaired financial assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised 
cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

(d) Rental income arising from non-cancellable operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term 
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the users benefit. In cases where the 
increase is in line with expected general inflation rental income is recognised as per the contractual terms.
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outstanding and the rate applicable.

(f) In case of assignment transactions, as the Company retains the contractual right to receive some of the interest amount
due on the transferred assets, the present value of such interest receivable is recorded as ‘Interest retained on pools
assigned’ with corresponding gain recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Revenue from Contract with Customers:

Revenue is recognised when transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
that the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised when 
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related services are rendered and performance obligation is satisfied which is based on a five-step model as set out 
below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that 
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects 
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than 
one performance obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount 
that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing 
in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as unearned revenues).

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance 
obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the 
customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material 
basis.

(h) Income from dividend is recognised when the right to receive such dividend is established, it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part 
of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

(i) Finance lease income is allocated to accounting period so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's 
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

(j) Referral income and others income is recognized when it becomes due under the term of relevant mutually agreed 
arrangement.

(k) Revenue from sale of power is recognised to the extent of the Group’s share of income of the jointly controlled operations 
arising out of sale of units generated as per the terms of the respective power purchase agreements with the State
Electricity Boards.

1.7. Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment
in the leases. Assets given on operating leases are included in Property Plant and Equipment. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For the revenue recognition policy on Lease Contracts, refer Note No. 1.6.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract 
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through 
the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for 

all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with low-value assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a 

lease term of 12 months or less). For these short term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an

operating expense over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability i.e. the present 

value of future lease payment, adjusted for any lease payment made at or prior to the commencement date of lease plus

any initial direct costs less any lease incentive. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease liability 

is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted

using interest rate implicit in the lease or if not readily determinable using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are 

remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it

will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction

of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rentals are 

recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into 

lease, such incentives are adjusted towards right-of-use-asset.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

1.8. Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) in lakhs, the functional currency of the Group.

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the reporting date, are translated 

at the reporting date at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated

statement of Profit and Loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Non–monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates
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comprehensive income.

1.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds including 

interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance

lease. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, 

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Interest expense includes origination costs that are initially recognised as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and 

amortized over the expected life using the EIR. It also include expenses related to borrowing which are not part of effective 

interest as not directly related to loan origination.
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1.10. Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit costs and other employee benefits

(A) Defined Contribution Plans:

Contributions to Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employee State Insurance are considered as defined contribution plans

and are recognised as expenditure when an employee renders related services.

(B) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity Liability and Long Term compensated absences are defined benefit plan.  The cost of providing benefits is determined

in accordance with the advice of independent, professionally qualified actuaries, using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the

return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected on the consolidated balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised

in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive
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(C) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the

period in which related service is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits

expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated

future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

1.11. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current Tax is determined at the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 

1961. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss because of 

items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting period.

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company and its

subsidiaries will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to

be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and

shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each consolidated balance sheet date and writes down

the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Group 

will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax

The Group’s deferred tax is calculated using tax rate that are substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally

recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary 

differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary

differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from 

the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is 

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

1.12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment shown in the consolidated balance sheet consists of assets used in provision of services or for
administrative purposes, and include assets leased by the Group as lessor under operating leases.

Initial and subsequent recognition

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost together with borrowing cost capitalized for qualifying assets.
Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. 

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. It is recognised to write down  the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. 

Average useful life of the assets determined is as under:

Own Use Assets:

Assets description as per 

Note No.13

Useful Life as per the 

Companies Act 2013

Useful Life as followed 

by the Group

Buildings 60 years 60 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 10 years

��������
��

	�� �"�	����� 3, 5, 6 years 3,5,6 years
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 8 years 7, 8 years

Plant and Machinery 15, 22 years 8,15,22 years

Operating lease Assets:

Assets description as per 

Note No. 13

Useful Life as per the

Companies Act 2013

Useful Life as followed

by the Group

Computers 3, 6 years 5 years

Earth Moving Equipment 9 years 7 years

����� ~��	���
 8 years 7 years

Plant and Machinery 15, 30 years 8,15,22,30 years

Windmills 22 years 20 years
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Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. 
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Leasehold assets including improvements are amortised over estimated useful life or the period of the lease, whichever is
lower. 
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1.13. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over 2-6 years, which reflects the managements estimate. 

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, arerecognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is de-recognised.

1.14. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment on an 
annual basis, and on a shorter period whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in 
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

1.15. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost.
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,

a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are

lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value

of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. 

In case of litigations, provision is recognised once it has been established that the Group has a present obligation based on 

information available up to the date on which the Group’s consolidated financial statements are finalised and may in some 

cases entail seeking expert advice in making the determination on whether there is a present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not

recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability

also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

Group does not recognize contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed where an inflow of economic 

benefits is probable.

1.16. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, balances with banks, cheques on hand, remittances in transit and 

short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.17. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker (CODM). The CODM assess the financial performance and position of the Group and makes strategic decisions.

Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit similarities in

nature of services offered.

1.18. Repossessed Assets andAssets Acquired in Satisfaction of Debt

Repossessed assets and assets acquired in satisfaction of debt are those assets whose carrying amount is recovered

principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. These assets are disclosed as part of ‘other non-

financial assets’ and are carried at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

1.19. Financial Instruments

Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Group’s business model for

managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve

its business objective. The Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors.
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The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Group’s original 
expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process  is to assess the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they
meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset.

In making this assessment, it is considered whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin
that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that
are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through 
profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the 
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such
as derivative liabilities.

1.19.1 Recognition of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
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derecognised on the trade date basis.

1.19.2 Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

1.19.3 Subsequent Measurement:

(A) Financial Assets

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost (AC):

These financial assets comprise bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables, Other receivables, investments and other financial
assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order 
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):
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contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by the Group in a
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election has been made by management on an instrument-by-instrument basis. These investments are initially measured at 
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments. Dividends on such investments
are recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.
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method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and
Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):
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designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
	�
������� �
 �� �~}���

� |�� �	

������
 ���\��� ��� 
�	� �����
 �
 
	����	�� �

��
 ���

	
	�� �
 �~}�� ��� ���� �� ��� ����� �� ��� ������� 
����
date is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is 
recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed
under “Expenses” in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The EIR is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income or expense
over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost
of a financial liability on initial recognition.

The EIR for financial assets or financial liability is computed

a. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.

b. Including fees and transaction costs that are integral part of EIR. 

Impairment of Financial Assets:
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reporting date based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset 
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost
or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
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is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss
but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheet; so the financial asset
continues to be presented in the balance sheet at its fair value.

No Expected credit losses are recognised on equity investments.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses 
taking into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Derecognition of Financial Assets:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
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On derecognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in its entirety:

a) for financial assets measured at amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

b) for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments

previously taken to reserves are reclassified to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an

equity investment in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves may be reclassified within

equity.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the 

previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset shall be allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and

the part that is derecognised, on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the

transferred asset, it recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, it continues to

recognise the financial asset and also recognises a liability for the proceeds received.

Modification/revision in estimates of cash flows of financial assets:

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or modification 

does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group recalculates the gross

carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in the consolidated statement of Profit and

Loss. 
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different and whether the same would amount to extinguishment of financial asset and recognition of a new financial asset.

The gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual

cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred are adjusted to

the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

(B) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:

Classification as debt or equity: 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements 

entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities. Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is 

recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own

equity instruments.

Financial Liabilities

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair 

value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if 

they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 

that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR

method except for those designated in an effective hedging relationship.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd.)

242 Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited



Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of 
the borrowings using the EIR method.

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as ’trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services
received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group
prior to the end of financial year, which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantees issued by the Group are those guarantees that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
of the guarantee for a loss incurred by the holder because the specified debtor fails to make a payment, when due, to the
holder in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a liability at fair
value, adjusted for transactions costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised 
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

1.19.4 Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously backed by past practice.

1.19.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group considers markets
as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities 
and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the consolidated balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include
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quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and 
observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. 
In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items
that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are
significant to the entire measurement, the Group will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as
whole.

1.19.6 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles

Expected credit loss (ECL) is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e., the present value of all cash shortfalls) over 
the expected life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between scheduled or contractual cash flows
and actual expected cash flows. Consequently, ECL subsumes both the amount and timing of payments. It also incorporates
available information which is relevant to the assessment, including information about past events, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable information about future events and economic conditions at the reporting date.

The Company uses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Methodology to assess the impairment on funded credit exposures. The 
application of the model was derived from the combination of the probability of default and loss given default being applied to
the exposure at default (EAD) to compute ECL based on historical data on an unsegmented basis due to limitation of count in
the past. Owing to transfer of the business, empirical data for the newly constituted business of the Company was not available
and hence ECL for non-funded credit exposures is being computed by calculating the difference between the EAD and Net
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carries out reviews for specifically identified exposures as meriting special focus in calculation of ECL for fulfilling the objective
of greater prudence.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses 
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial 
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the 
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost
or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
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in other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the statement of Profit and Loss but is not reduced from the 
carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet; so the financial asset continues to be presented in the balance
sheet at its fair value.

No Expected credit losses isrecognised on equity investments.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used 
a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. The expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision 
matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and recovery.

1.20. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. Further details of 
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note to the financial statements.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
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event the timing of the recognition in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedging 
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host 
��������
 ��� ��� ���
���� �� �~}���

1.21. Hedge Accounting

The Group complies with the principles of hedge accounting where derivative contracts are designated as hedging instruments.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the documentation is done for  the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking hedge transaction, which
can be a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge. Furthermore, on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk. 

Fair Value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are 
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and the change
in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in consolidated statement of Profit and Loss in
the line item relating to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the
hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated as ‘Cash Flow Hedge Reserve’. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts previously recognised and accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the underlying transaction is ultimately recognised in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss. When an underlying transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in
equity is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

1.22. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

1.23. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following
notes:
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1.23.1 Impairment charges on loans and advances

The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future 
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit 
risk. These are based on the assumptions which are driven by a number of factors resulting in future changes to the 
impairment allowance.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note No. 1.19.6 Overview of ECL principles.

1.23.2 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The 
Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve
a particular business objective. The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to
the classification of those assets.

1.23.3 Provisions other than loan impairment

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee entitlements, litigation provisions, etc. Some
of the provisions involve significant judgement about the likely outcome of various events and estimated future cash flows. 
The measurement of these provisions involves the exercise of management judgements about the ultimate outcomes of the 
transactions.

1.23.4 Fair Value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 
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in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of consolidated financial instruments.

1.23.5 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

1.23.6 EIR method
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different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
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instrument.

1.23.7 Other estimates

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.

1.24 Recent accounting pronouncements

MCA notifies new Standards or amendments to existing standards. There are no such notifications which would have been
applicable from 1st April, 2020.
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2. Cash and Cash Equivalents   (` in Lacs)

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Cash on hand  15  308 

Balances with Banks - in Current Account  39,942  30,849

Fixed Deposits with banks having original maturity of 3 months or less  102  136 

Total  40,059  31,293 

(i) Changes in Cash Flow from financing activities  (` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

1st April, 2019

Movement

As at  

31st March, 2020

Change due 

to Sale of 

Subsidiaries*

Cash  Non-Cash 

Debt Securities  3,61,352  -  (98,627)  -  2,62,725 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  26,69,115  -  15,253  -  26,84,368 

Subordinated Liabilities  3,35,611  -  (50,800)  -  2,84,811 

{����	��� ���������
  507  -  (114)  -  393 

Total  33,66,585  -  (1,34,288)  -  32,32,297 

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at 

1st April, 2018

Movement

As at 

31st March, 2019

Change due 

to Sale of

Subsidiaries*

Cash  Non-Cash 

Debt Securities  3,33,734  27,867  (249)  3,61,352 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  27,57,226  (9,432)  (78,679)  -  26,69,115 

Subordinated Liabilities  3,03,235  32,376  -  3,35,611 

{����	��� ���������
  -  -  -  507  507 

Total  33,94,195  (9,432)  (18,436)  258  33,66,585

* Change due to Sale of Subsidiaries has been reported in the Statement of Cash Flows under Cash Flow from Investing Activities as 
'Sale of Subsidiaries'    

3. Bank Balance other than Note No. 2 above   (` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

{����	��� �	�	���� |������
  36  52
Earmarked Balances  4,494  - 
Fixed Deposits with banks having original maturity of more than 3 months 
(Including accrued interest for fixed deposits)*

 1,27,450  1,71,156 

Total  1,31,980  1,71,208

* Includes   (` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

{���� �	��£
 - Cash collateral for securitisation of receivables  56,574  35,553
 - Security against borrowings  35  35
 - Letter of Credit  2,335  51,847
 - Bank Guarantees  54,440  79,734
! {����	��� ����	� ����
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�  1  1

 - Others  3,152  1
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4. Derivative Financial Instruments

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Notional 

Amounts

 Fair 

Value - 

Assets 

 Fair 

Value - 

Liabilities 

Notional 

Amounts

 Fair 

Value - 

Assets 

 Fair 

Value - 

Liabilities 

Part I

(i)Currency derivatives:

-Spot and Forwards  24,767  157  151  20,333  8  1,084

-Currency swaps  2,37,654  27,706  228  2,73,754  7,193  3,880

-Options purchased  11,079  2,129  -  11,079  455  -

Subtotal (i) 2,73,500  29,992  379 3,05,166  7,656  4,964 

(ii)Interest rate derivatives

-Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps  -  -  3,767 16,596  586  761 

Subtotal(ii)  - -  3,767  16,596  586  761 

Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i)+(ii) 2,73,500  29,992  4,146 3,21,762  8,242  5,725 

Part II

Included in above (Part I) are derivatives held  for 
hedging and risk management purposes as follows:

(i) Fair value hedging:  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Subtotal (i)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(ii) Cash flow hedging:

-Currency derivatives  1,559  20  5  4,179  1  105

-Interest rate derivatives  -  -  1,602  -  -  538 

Subtotal (ii)  1,559  20  1,607  4,179  1  643 

�			� {���
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 2,71,941  29,972 2,539  3,17,583  8,241 5,082

Subtotal (iii) 2,71,941  29,972  2,539 3,17,583  8,241  5,082 

Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i)+(ii)+(iii) 2,73,500 29,992  4,146 3,21,762  8,242  5,725 

The Group's risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risk are explained in Note No. 35.
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or speculation, for the purpose of hedging currency and interest rate related risks. Options, Swaps and Forward contracts 
outstanding are as follows:

(Amount in Lacs)

Category Currency

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Amount in Foreign Currency Amount in Foreign Currency

���	��
 ��\��
 {���� �  -   {�� ¢���¢
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Forwards {���� � {�� ���¤¢ {�� �¤

Forwards �{��� � �{� �« �{� ��¢

Forwards �{��{��  -   �{� ��

Forwards |{��� �  -   |{� �

Interest Rate Swaps {���� �  -   {�� ¢��
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5.1. Trade Receivables:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

(a) Considered good - Secured;  -    -   

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance  -    -   

 -    -   

(b) ���
	����� ���� ! {�
�������  18,529  40,004 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance  386  11,768 

 18,143  28,236 

(c) Significant increase in credit risk  -    -   

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance  -    -   

 -    -   

(d) Credit impaired  467  1,665 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance  462  1,665 

 5  -   

Total (a+b+c+d)  18,148  28,236

i. In determining the allowances for credit losses, the Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss
allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

ii. Movements in Expected Credit Losses Allowance is as below:  
(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year  13,433  12,310 

Charge in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  (1,102)  3,656 

Disposal of entity under control  -  (942)

{�	�	ª�� ���	�� ��� ����  (11,483)  (1,591)

Balance at the end of the year  848  13,433 

iii. Ageing of Trade Receivables and Credit Risk arising therefrom is as below:
(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

Gross carrying 

amount

Allowance for 

credit loss

Net carrying 

amount

Due till three months  17,659  211  17,448 

Due between three to six months  344  1  343 

Due between six months to one year  152  2  150

Due between one year to two year  429  222  207

More than 2 year due  412  412  -

 18,996  848  18,148

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2019

Gross carrying

amount

Allowance for 

credit loss

Net carrying 

amount

Due till three months  27,243  417  26,826 

Due between three to six months  372  212  160 

Due between six months to one year 1,272  938  334 

More than 1 year due  12,782  11,866  916 

 41,669  13,433  28,236 
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5.2 Other Receivables

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

(a) Secured, considered good; - -

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance - -

(b) {�
������ ���
	����� ����� ��� - -

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance - -

(c) Significant increase in credit risk - -

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance - -

(d) Credit impaired - -

Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance - -

Total (a+b+c+d) - -

i. In determining the allowances for credit losses, the Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss
allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

ii. Movements in Expected Credit Losses Allowance is as below:

(` in Lacs) 

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   

Credited in Statement of Profit and Loss  -    -   

{�	�	ª������	�����������  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  -    -   

iii. Ageing of Other Receivables and Credit Risk arising therefrom is as below:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

Gross carrying 

amount

Allowance for 

credit loss

Net carrying 

amount

Due till three months  -    -    -   

Due between three to six months  -    -    -   

Due between six months to one year - - -

More than 1 year due  -    -    -   

- - -

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2019

Gross carrying 

amount

Allowance for 

credit loss

Net carrying 

amount

Due till three months - - - 

Due between three to six months - - - 

Due between six months to one year  -  -  - 

More than 1 year due  -  -  - 

- - - 
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8. Other Financial Assets

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Income accrued but not due  -  229 

Interest retained on Pool Assigned  31,608  11,057 

Less: Impairment loss allowance for Interest retained on Pool Assigned  (1,300)  (307)

Rental accrued but not due  10,050  13,303 

Less: Impairment loss allowance for Rental accrued but not due [Refer Note No. 5.1(i)]  (117)  (490)

Loan to employees  3  40 

Security deposits  1,686  19,122 

Advance for Investments  24  23 

Claims Receivables [Refer Note No. 8.1]  51,015  48,045 

Other Advances and Receivables  242  853 

Contribution to trust fund  -  1 

Total  93,211  91,876

8.1 Includes claims receivable measured at fair value through profit or loss amounting to ` 51,015 Lacs (previous year ` ` 21,022 Lacs)`

9. Other Non-Financial Assets

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Capital Advances  813  2,149 

Employee Advances  305  461 

|������ �� ~�����
 
�� ������	�� �����
�
  3,189  6,846 

Advance Rent  1  6,103 

Balances with Government Authorities  3,581  36,524 

Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt*  47,663  72,465 

Prepaid expenses  871  657 

Total  56,423  1,25,205

* Includes repossessed assets amounting to ` 43,383 Lacs (previous year ` ���¤�� ���
� ��� ��
� 	������
 �

��
�����������

acquired in satisfaction of debt amounting to ` 4,280 Lacs (previous year ` 41,835 Lacs).

10. Current Tax Assets (Net)

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Advance Tax [(net of provision for tax ` 74,768 Lacs
31st March, 2019: ` 29,903 Lacs)]  20,896  14,109 

Total  20,896  14,109

The reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as below:
(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Profit Before Tax  14,171  66,788

Statutory Income Tax Rate 34.944% 34.944%

Expected income tax expense at statutory income tax rate  4,952  23,339 

�	� ������ ������ 
��� ��������
 ��� ������	��� �����  1,092  (1,093)

�		� �

��� �
 	������	�� ����
	� � �	

����� ��� ���� �� �����	� 	���
  (96)  (4,059)

(iii) Other differences  (652)  (105)

Total Tax Expense recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  5,296  18,082

Total Tax Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  3,701  1,882 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd.)
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11. Deferred Tax Assets / (Deferred Tax Liability) (Net)

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at

1st April,

2019

Recognised/ 

(reversed) in

Statement of

Profit & Loss

Recognised/ 

(reversed)

in Other

Comprehensive

Income

Reclassified 

to 

Statement

of Profit and

Loss

Utilisation

of MAT

credit

Impact

due to

Cessation of

subsidiaries

As at  

31st March, 

2020

MAT Credit
Entitlement

 1,229  3,118  -  -  -  -  4,347

Financial Assets and 
�	��	�	�	�
 �� �~}��

 1,743  (403)  (1,249)  2,198  -  -  2,289 

Receivables, 
Financial Assets
and Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost

 40,907  (6,612)  -  -  -  -  34,295 

{�����	
�� ��	� ��
Investment carried
�� ��	� ~����

 (2,413)  (1,059)  4,794  -  -  -  1,322

Carried Forward
�
 ��

�
 �
{���
�����
Depreciation

 23,031  (768)  -  -  -  -  22,263

Property, Plant and
Equipment and
Intangible Assets

 (42,248)  854  -  -  -  -  (41,394)

Loss under Income 
Tax

 -  2,547  -  -  -  -  2,547

Other Timing
Differences

 (2,897)  308  (16)  -  -  -  (2,605)

�	
����\����
 ��

43B of IT Act

 6  (1)  -  -  -  -  5

Provisions  59  (39)  172  -  -  -  192

Net Deferred Tax

Assets/ (Liabilities)
 19,417  (2,055)  3,701  2,198  -  -  23,261

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd.)
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(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 

1st April, 

2018

Recognised/ 

(reversed) in 

Statement of 

Profit & Loss

Recognised/ 

(reversed) 

in Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Reclassified

to 

Statement 

of Profit and 

Loss

Utilisation 

of MAT 

credit

Impact 

due to 

Cessation of 

subsidiaries

As at 

31st March, 

2019

MAT Credit
Entitlement

5,341  73  -  -  (3,899)  (286)  1,229

Financial Assets and
�	��	�	�	�
 �� �~}��

3,572 (1,480)  (1,973)  1,612  -  12  1,743

Receivables,
Financial Assets
and Liabilities at
Amortised Cost

 58,003  (17,096)  -  - -  - 40,907 

{�����	
�� ��	� ��
Investment carried
�� ��	� ~����

 1,207  (6,666)  3,843  -  -  (797)  (2,413)

Carried Forward
�
 ��

�
 �
{���
�����
Depreciation

 2,123  22,509  -  -  -  (1,601)  23,031

Property, Plant and
Equipment and
Intangible Assets

 (47,126)  2,238  -  3,574  -  (934)  (42,248)

Loss under Income
Tax

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Timing
Differences

 2,241  (2,591)  16  -  -  (2,563)  (2,897)

�	
����\����
 ��

43B of IT Act

 47  13  (4)  -  -  (50)  6

Provisions  980  76  -  -  -  (997)  59 

Net Deferred Tax 

Assets/ (Liabilities)
 26,388  (2,924)  1,882  5,186  (3,899)  (7,216)  19,417 
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15. Trade Payables

(i)  Total outstanding dues of  micro enterprises and small enterprises

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

a) The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier  -    -   

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount 
of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. 

 -    -   

c) The amount of interest due  and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 

 -    -   

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid   -    -   

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
year until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 -    -   

Total  -    -   

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

(ii)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(` in Lacs)

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

For Supplies and Services  360  1,279 

Acceptances  17,280  92,430 

Other than Acceptances  95,792  74,983 

Total  1,13,432  1,68,692

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd.)
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19. Other Financial Liabilities

(` in Lacs)

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

{���	� �	�	����
 ���
��  ���  �� �����  36  52 

{���	� ������� ����
	�
 ��� ������
� |������ �������  -  1 

{���	� ������� ���������
 ��� ������
� |������ �������  393  507 

�����	�� ����
	�
 � ������	��
  23,875  41,422 

Payable to Employees  1,154  1,399 

Commission Payable to Directors  -  659 

Liability for Operating Expenses  3,335  3,361 

Financial Guarantee Liability  356  689 

Advances and Due to Others  1,049  766 

Total  30,198  48,856

19.1 To be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.

20. Provisions

(` in Lacs)

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No. 38)

Provision for Gratuity  812  673 

����	
	�� 
�� {����	��� �����  1,203  1,423 

Total  2,015  2,096

21. Other Non-Financial Liabilities

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Sundry liabilities (Interest Capitalisation) Account  1,443  1,638 

Advance from Customers  4,358  3,322 

Statutory Liabilities  1,794  1,405 

Pre-received Rent  4,230  11,514 

Others  -  190 

Total  11,825  18,069

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd.)
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22. Equity Share Capital

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

No. of Shares ` in Lacs No. of Shares ` in Lacs

Authorised

Equity Shares, ` ���! ��� ����� ��� 
���� 1000000000  1,00,000 1000000000  1,00,000 

Preference Shares, ` ����! ��� ����� ��� 
����  50000000  50,000  50000000  50,000

 1,50,000  1,50,000

Issued and subscribed

Equity Shares, ` ���! ��� ����� ��� 
���� 503559160  50,356 503559160  50,356

Fully Paid-up 

Equity Shares, ` ���! ��� ����� ��� 
����  503086333  50,309  503086333  50,309

Forfeited Shares  -  - 472827  15 

 50,309  50,324

22.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding   

  The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof, as at the Balance Sheet
date is set out below:

(` in Lacs)

Equity Shares
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

No. of Shares ` in Lacs No. of Shares ` in Lacs

At the beginning of the year 503086333  50,309 503086333  50,309

Add: Issued during the year  -    -    -   -   

At the end of the year 503086333  50,309 503086333  50,309

22.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares   

The Group’s authorised capital consists of two classes of shares, referred to as Equity Shares and Preference Shares having 
par value of ` ���! ��� ` ����! ���� ��
����	����� ���� ������ �
 �"�	�� 
����
 	
 ���	���� �� ��� ���� ��� 
����� ���
������
Shareholder has a preferential right over equity share holders, in respect of repayment of capital and payment of dividend. 
However, no such preference shares have been issued by the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st 
March, 2019.    

 In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of 
the Group, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.

22.3 Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash/by way of bonus shares (during 5 years preceding 

31st March, 2020)   
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22.4 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares each, are set out below:

(` in Lacs)

Name of the shareholders

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

No. of Shares
% of 

Shareholding
No. of Shares

% of 

Shareholding

Adisri Commercial Private Limited (Holding Company) 30,36,75,845  60.36  30,36,75,845  60.36

Fidelity Investment Trust Fidelity Series Emerging 
Markets Opportunities Fund

 2,64,98,940  5.27  3,43,55,610  6.83 

22.5 Refer note 33 - for Company’s capital management objectives, policies and processes    
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23. Other Equity

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

Special Reserve (pursuant to Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 )

   Opening balance  53,513  45,748 

   Add: Transfer from retained earnings  1,391  7,765
   Closing balance  54,904  53,513

Income Tax Special Reserve (created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961)

   Opening balance  23,734  23,621
   Add: Transfer from retained earnings  2,100  113
   Closing balance  25,834  23,734

Capital Reserve

   Opening balance  1,04,729  1,04,729
   Add: Addition during the year  15  -
  Closing balance  1,04,744  1,04,729

Securities Premium

   Opening balance  62,441  62,441
   Closing balance  62,441  62,441

Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve

   Opening balance  53,620  51,107
   Add: Transfer from retained earnings  -  9,684
�����

£ }���

�� �� ����	��� ����	��
� �� ��������� �
 ��������������  41,735  7,171
   Closing balance  11,885  53,620

General Reserve

   Opening balance  1,36,801  1,36,801
   Closing balance  1,36,801  1,36,801

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

   Opening balance  9,323  21,973
   Add: Transfer from retained earnings (net of tax)  (15,587)  (12,650)
   Closing balance  (6,264)  9,323

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

   Opening balance  (231)  (231)
   Add: Additions during the year  -  -
   Closing balance  (231)  (231)

Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

   Opening balance  4,085  3,003
   Add: Addition during the year  2,518  4,092
   Less: Reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  (4,092)  (3,010)
   Closing balance  2,511  4,085

Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges

   Opening balance  (418)  - 
   Add: Additions during the year  (615)  (418)
   Closing balance  (1,033)  (418)

Retained Earnings

   Opening balance  (86,804)  (1,19,015)
   Add: Profit for the year  8,884  48,685 
   Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)  13  (18)
Add/ Less: Appropriations

   Interim dividend  -  (2,515)
   Equity dividend  -  (2,515)
   Corporate Dividend Tax  -  (1,035)
   Transferred to Special Reserve  (1,391)  (7,765)
   Transferred to Income Tax special reserve  (2,100)  (113)
�� }���

����� �� �������������� �������	�� ��
���� � ���  41,735  (2,513)
   Total appropriations  38,244  (16,456)

Closing balance  (39,663)  (86,804)

Total  3,51,929  3,60,793
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(i) Special Reserve:   
Every year the Company and one of the subsidiary  i.e. Srei Equipment Finance Limited being the Non-Banking Financial
Companies,  transfers a sum of not less than twenty percent of net profit after tax of that year as disclosed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss to its Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to Special Reserve is as follows:  

No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Group except for the purpose as may be specified by
the RBI from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the RBI within twenty-one days from the date of 
such withdrawal. RBI may, in any particular case and for sufficient cause being shown, extend the period of twenty one days 
by such further period as it thinks fit or condone any delay in making such report.

(ii) Income Tax Special Reserve:    
This reserve has been created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any withdrawal from same will
be taxable as per provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(iii) Capital Reserve:   
This reserve represents capital investment subsidy received, amount forfeited towards warrant subscription and amount on
cancellation of forfeited equity shares.

(iv) Securities Premium:    
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

(v) Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve:

� ���
���� �� ����	�� «� �
 ��� ������	�
 |��� ¢��� ��� �	������ ���¢���� ���� \	�� ���	
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��� ���� ���� ����� ¢��¤
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Company is required to transfer 25% of the value of the outstanding debentures issued
through public issue as per the present SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008 to DRR and no DRR is
required in case of privately placed debenture. 

As per the notification G.S.R. 574(E) dated August 16th, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies
������ ���	��� � ���������
� ����
� ��� 	
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for both public as well as private placement debentures.

(vi) General Reserve:   
This reserve include amount transferred from net profit as per provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and Reserves
created on Amalgamation.

(vii) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income:
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those instruments are disposed off.

(viii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve:

Exchange differences arising on translation of a foreign associate are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to Profit or Loss when the investment
is disposed-off.

(ix) Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income:   
� �	����	�� �
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method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other net gains 
and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

(x) Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges:

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is initially recognised directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). When the hedged cash flow affects the statement 
of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income 
or expense line of the statement of profit and loss.

(xi) Retained Earnings:    
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Group. This can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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24. Interest Income     (` in Lacs)

Particulars

2019-20 2018-19

On Financial 

Assets 

measured 

at fair value 

through OCI

On Financial 

Assets 

measured at 

Amortised 

Cost

Interest 

Income on 

Financial 

Assets 

classified 

at fair value 

through 

profit or loss

Assets 

measured 

at fair value 

through OCI

On Financial 

Assets 

measured at 

Amortised 

Cost

Interest 

Income on 

Financial

Assets 

classified 

at fair value 

through 

profit or loss

Interest on Loans  10,180  3,63,922  429  17,607  3,87,402  337 

Interest income from investments  -    2,462  1,232  -    974  3,853 

Interest on deposits with Banks  -    8,557  -    -    10,631  -   

Other interest Income  -    41  -    -    564  -   

Total  10,180  3,74,982  1,661  17,607  3,99,571  4,190 

25. Net gain on fair value changes    (` in Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

(A) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(i) On trading portfolio

- Derivatives *  23,219  2,700 

(ii) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

 - Derivatives  18  (548)

- Investments  12,748  6,008 

 - Loans  4,873  3,280 

 - Deposits -  842 

 - Claims Receivable  (3,739)  (3,008)

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes (A)  37,119  9,274 

Fair Value changes:

-Realised  8,034  696 

-Unrealised  29,085  8,578 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes (B) to tally with (A)  37,119  9,274 

*  Derivative contracts have been entered to manage foreign currency risk and interest rate risk arising from underlying foreign 
currency financial liabilities and not for trading purpose.

Under Ind AS 109, a hedging relationship only qualifies for hedge accounting if a number of restrictive criteria are satisfied,
including appropriate designation and documentation of effectiveness at inception of the hedge. A hedging relationship will only
qualify for hedge accounting at the date of adoption (being 1st April, 2018) if the hedging relationship has been fully designated and 
documented as effective in accordance with Ind AS 109 on or before the date of adoption and is of a type that qualifies for hedge
accounting under Ind AS 109. Designation of a hedging relationship cannot be made retrospectively. Hence, all derivatives entered
prior to 1st April, 2018 has been classified as undesignated derivative.

26. Other Income     (` in Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Net gain / (loss) on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment  (2,372)  (1,211)

Liability No Longer Required written back  8,136  - 

Interest on Income Tax Refund  869  1,118

Net gain /(loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions  (20,787)  (4,048)

Others  116  854 

Total  (14,038)  (3,287)
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27. Finance Costs     (` in Lacs)

2019-20 2018-19

On Financial 

liabilities measured 

at fair value 

through profit or 

loss

On Financial 

liabilities measured 

at Amortised Cost

On Financial 

liabilities measured

at fair value

through profit or

loss

On Financial

liabilities measured

at Amortised Cost

Interest on borrowings  -    3,09,737  -    2,84,312 

Interest on debt securities  -    32,695  -    32,737

Interest on subordinated liabilities  -  34,197  -    30,364

Other interest expense  -  2,318  -    11,284

Total  -  3,78,947  -  3,58,697

      

28.  Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net)     (` in Lacs)

Particulars

2019-20 2018-19

On Financial 

Instruments 

measured at fair 

value through OCI

On Financial 

Instruments 

measured at 

Amortised Cost

On Financial 

Instruments

measured at fair

value through OCI

On Financial 

Instruments

measured at

Amortised Cost

Loans  1,354  38,821  3,621  40,289

Investments  -    2,081  -    3,038

Other financial assets  -    (1,021)  -    418 

Total  1,354  39,881  3,621  43,745

29. Employee Benefits Expenses   (` in Lacs) 

2019-20 2018-19

Salaries and wages  18,089  24,082 

Contribution to provident and other funds  1,248  1,462 

Staff welfare expenses  276  491 

Total  19,613  26,035 

30. Administrative and Other Expenses    (` in Lacs) 

2019-20 2018-19

Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs  1,337  3,763 

Repairs and Maintenance  5,026  3,618 

Communication Costs  464  491 

Printing and Stationery  228  322 

Advertisement and Publicity  649  1,080

Director's Fees, Allowances and Expenses  142  127 

Auditor's Fees and Expenses  264  394 

Legal and Professional Charges  6,971  8,860

Insurance  227  345 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (refer Note No. 30.1)  497  838 

Travelling & Conveyance  3,227  4,841

Other Expenditure  3,064  3,105

Total  22,096  27,784
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30.1 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  (` in Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Gross amount required to be spent during the year  933  788 

Amount spent during the year

- Construction / acquisition of any asset  -    -  

- On purposes other than above  497  838 

Paid in Cash  497  838 

Yet to be paid in cash  -    -   

31. Earnings Per Share (EPS) - The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic and Diluted EPS 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Profit after Tax attributable to the Equity Shareholders (` in Lacs) (A)  8,875  48,678 

Basic and Diluted

(a) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year  50,30,86,333  50,30,86,333 

(b) Number of Equity Shares issued during the year  -  - 

(c) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year  50,30,86,333  50,30,86,333 

(d) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (B)  50,30,86,333  50,30,86,333 

(e) Nominal Value of each Equity Share (`)  10  10

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (`) (A/B)  1.76  9.68 

     

32. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the Extent Not Provided For)    (` in Lacs)

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

A. Contingent Liabilities

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:

    Income Tax  15,178  14,400 

    Service Tax  6,549  6,549

     Central Sales Tax  241  318 

    Entry Tax  80  -

     Value Added Tax (VAT)  1,562  1,493

     ESIC  3  - 

     Claims under dispute  -  22,405

(b) Guarantees:

     Bank Guarantees  55,297  66,557 

Total  78,910  1,11,722 

B. Commitments

   Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided
   for (Net of advances)

 144  3,400 

   On account of Letter of Credit  -  - 

   Other Commitments  2,003  2,003 
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33. Capital Management        

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Group complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise 
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend 
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives,
policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board of the Company. 
     

34. Regulatory Capital (Capital Adequacy Ratio)  (` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Tier I capital  15,301  1,43,602 

Tier II capital  -  63,632

Total capital  15,301  2,07,234

Risk weighted assets  71,595  13,31,383 

Tier I Ratio (%)  21.37  10.79

Tier II Ratio (%)  -    4.78

        

Regulatory capital consists of Tier I capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including current 
year profit, statutory reserves and other free reserves less deferred revenue expenditure and intangible assets of the Company. The
other component of regulatory capital is Tier II Capital Instruments, which includes subordinate bonds, deposits and loans of the
Company.         

The aforesaid figures on regulatory capital are as per RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended, and are not
as per Ind AS.
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35. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures      

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional information on 
consolidated balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial Asset, Financial Liability and Equity Instrument are 
disclosed in Note No. 1.19 to the financial statements. 

A) Categories of Financial Instruments     

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial Assets

a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents  40,059  40,059  31,293  31,293 
ii) Bank Balance other than (i) above  1,31,980  1,31,980  1,71,208  1,71,208 
iii) Trade Receivables  18,148  18,148  28,236  28,236 
iv) Other Receivables  -  -  -  - 
v) Loans  27,09,162  27,12,716  25,21,722  25,35,001 
vi) Investments  1,496  1,496  21,959  21,959 
vii) Other Financial Assets  42,196  42,196  70,854  70,854 
Sub-total  29,43,041  29,46,595  28,45,272  28,58,551

b) Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

i) Derivative Financial Instruments  29,992  29,992  8,242  8,242 
ii) Loans  83,923  83,923  40,060  40,060 
iii) Investments  64,655  64,655  1,11,689  1,11,689 
iv) Other financial assets  51,015  51,015  21,022  21,022 
Sub-total  2,29,585  2,29,585  1,81,013  1,81,013

c) Measured at Fair value through Other

Comprehensive Income

i) Investments  42,969  42,969  78,205  78,205
ii) Loans  1,10,097  1,10,097  2,52,621  2,52,621 
Sub-total  1,53,066  1,53,066  3,30,826  3,30,826 

d) Measured at Cost

i) Investment in Subsidiaries & Associates  -  -  -  -
Sub-total  -  -  -  - 

Total Financial Assets  33,25,692  33,29,246  33,57,111  33,70,390 

Financial Liabilities

a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Trade Payables  1,13,432  1,13,432  1,68,692  1,68,692 
ii) Debt Securities  2,62,725  2,61,681  3,61,352  3,65,332 
iii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  26,84,368  26,82,416  26,69,115  26,65,682 
iv) Subordinated Liabilities  2,84,811  2,74,958  3,35,611  3,36,603 
v) Lease  Liabilities  3,563  3,563  -  - 
vi) Other Financial Liabilities  30,198  30,198  48,856  48,856
Sub-total  33,79,097  33,66,248  35,83,626  35,85,165 

b) Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

i) Derivative Financial Instruments  4,146  4,146  5,725  5,725
Sub-total  4,146  4,146  5,725  5,725 

Total Financial Liabilities  33,83,243  33,70,394  35,89,351  35,90,890 

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not 
recorded and measured at fair value in the Group’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes
only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.    
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Loans measured at amortised cost

The fair values of loan assets are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based on
terms, discounted at the average lending rate.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets have assets with short-term maturity (less than twelve months) as on consolidated balance sheet date and
therefore, the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Debt Securities, Subordinated Liabilities and Other Borrowings measured at amortised cost

The fair values of debts are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based on terms,
discounted at the average borrowing rate.

Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities have liability with short-term maturity (less than twelve months) as on consolidated balance sheet date and
therefore, the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

B) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock 
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active 
market (for example over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable 
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable 
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, Loans and Other Financial Assets 
included in level 3.

(` in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Derivative Financial Instruments  -    29,992  -    29,992 

Loans  -    -    1,94,020  1,94,020 

Investments  7,040  10,042  90,542  1,07,624 

Other Financial Assets  -    -    51,015  51,015 

 7,040  40,034  3,35,577  3,82,651 

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial Instruments  -    4,146  -    4,146 

 -    4,146  -    4,146 
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       (` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Derivative Financial Instruments  -    8,242  -    8,242 

Loans  -    -    2,92,681  2,92,681 

Investments  22,777  10,044  1,57,073  1,89,894 

Other Financial Assets  -    -    21,022  21,022 

 22,777  18,286  4,70,776  5,11,839

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial Instruments  -    5,725  -    5,725

 -    5,725  -    5,725 

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basisp g

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

Fair Value As at Fair Value 

Hierarchy

Valuation 

Technique and 

Key Input

Significant 

Unobservable

Input

31st March, 

2020

31st March,

2019

Financial Assets

Derivative Financial Instruments  29,992  8,242 Level 2 Note (i) Not Applicable

Loans  1,94,020  2,92,681 Level 3 Note (ii) Note (vii) & (ix)

Other Financial Assets  51,015  21,022 Level 3 Note (ii) Note (x)

Investments  7,040  22,777 Level 1 Note (iii) Not Applicable

Investments  10,042  10,044 Level 2 Note (iv) & (v) Not Applicable

Investments  90,542  1,57,073 Level 3 Note (vi) Note (vii) & (viii)

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial Instruments  4,146  5,725 Level 2 Note (i) Not Applicable

(i) Mark-to-Market

Fair value of the asset and liability has been estimated using the current market price, or price for similar assets and liabilities
as applicable.       

(ii) Income Approachpp

The discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present value of the the expected future benefits (including 
contractual cash flows) to be derived from the Loans, Investments and Other Financial Assets.   

(iii) Quoted Prices.

Quoted bid prices of an active market was used.      

(iv) Comparable Company p p y Method

Relevant information from companies operating in similar economic environment and industry was used.   

(v) Price to Revenue/Earnings g Multiple p Method

Price was derived as a multiple of revenue/earnings.       

(vi) Other Inputs      
(a) Market Multiple Method: Relevant information from companies operating in similar economic environment and industry

was used.       
(b) Discounted Cash Flow Method: Present value of the expected future benefits to be derived from the underlying

Assets.      
(c) Net Asset Valuation Method: Value of the underlying net assets of the business.
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(vii) Discount rate, determined using the average cost of borrowing + spread and contract yield rates.  

(viii) Estimated future cash flows.       

(ix) The fair value of loans is derived based on the valuation of the underlying assets.   

(x) Probability of recovery and discount rate considered by the Valuer.    

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements   (` in Lacs) 

Reconciliation
Loans Investments Other Financial Assets

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Opening Balance  2,92,681  5,44,510  1,57,073  1,37,127  21,022  39,209 

Purchases  1,55,388  2,77,703  4,143  8,036  58,195  - 

Sales/ Repayments  (2,81,334)  (5,35,641)  (64,914)  4,885  (21,022)  (15,179)

Transfers into Level 3  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Transfers from Level 3  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Unrealised income/(loss)  24,769  3,440  (6,821)  7,025  (7,180)  (3,008)

Other Comprehensive Income  2,516  2,669  1,061  -  -  - 

Closing Balance  1,94,020  2,92,681  90,542  1,57,073  51,015  21,022 

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market datay g

The table below describes the effect of changing the significant unobservable inputs to reasonable possible alternatives. Sensitivity
data are calculated using a number of techniques, including analysing price dispersion of different price sources, adjusting model 
inputs to reasonable changes within the fair value methodology.

The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the model inputs are usually not in the middle of the favourable/unfavourable 
range.      

       (` in Lacs) 

Reconciliation

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Favourable 

Changes

Unfavourable 

Changes

Favourable 

Changes

 Unfavourable

Changes 

Loans  5,778  (5,471)  8,562  (8,170)

Investments  4,920  (4,414)  2,250  2,227

Other Financial Assets  2,067  (1,954)  1,473  112 

Total  12,765  (11,839)  12,285  (5,831)

C) Financial risk management objectives

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

The Group has an independent and dedicated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system to identify, manage and mitigate business
risks.

Board has approved the Asset Liability Management Policy and the formation of Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO). The
ALCO includes the Group’s senior management. It defines the strategy for managing liquidity and interest rate risks in the business.

a)) Market risk

The Group's Financial Instruments are exposed to market changes. The Group is exposed to the following significant market risk:

i. Foreign Currency Risk

ii. Interest Rate Risk

iii. Other Price Risk
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i. Foreign currency riskg y

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currency which results in exchange rate fluctuations. Such exchange
rate risk primarily arises from transactions made in foreign exchange and reinstatement risks arising from recognised assets and 
liabilities, which are not in the Group's functional currency (Indian Rupees).

Foreign Currency Exposure ( ` in Lacs)      

As at 31st March, 2020 USD Euro Total

 5  -    5

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  1,97,384  85,612  2,82,996 

Foreign Currency Exposure ( ` in Lacs)       

March, 2019 USD Euro Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents  4  -    4 

Liability for Expenses  86  -    86 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  1,82,480  90,488  2,72,968 

Hedged Foreign Currency balances ( ` in Lacs): Currency
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) USD  1,97,384  1,82,480 

EUR  85,612  90,488 

       

Foreign currency sensitivityg y y

Foreign Currency Sensitivities (impact on increase in 2%)    (` in Lacs)

Currency
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

USD  (3,948)  (3,651)

EUR  (1,712)  (1,810)

      

The Group has entered into Spots, Forwards and Currency Swaps to manage its foreign currency risk.  Hence, the Group's profit and 
loss and equity is not exposed to such foreign currency sensitivity.

Note: If the rate is decreased by 2%, profit of the group will increase by an equal amount.

ii. Interest rate risk      

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The Group manages 
the risk by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, and by use of interest rate swaps and cross
currency interest rate swaps. Hedging activities are evaluated to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, to deploy the
most cost effective hedging strategies.

The group is further exposed to interest rate risk as the group lends funds at floating interest rates.
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Interest Rate Exposure (` in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2020 INR EUR USD Others# Total

Financial Assets

Loans  19,41,670  -    -    -    19,41,670 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (Other than Debt 
Securities)

 20,97,662  85,612  1,95,873  -    23,79,147 

Subordinated Liabilities  15,000  -    -    -    15,000 

As at 31st March, 2019 INR EUR USD Others# Total

Financial Assets

Loans  21,28,614  -    -    -    21,28,614 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (Other than Debt 
Securities)

 19,75,089  90,488  1,75,246  -    22,40,823 

Subordinated Liabilities  15,000  -    -    -    15,000

# Others primarily include GBP-Great Britain Pound and SGD-Singapore Dollar

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) 
of the Group’s consolidated statement of profit and loss and equity.

Interest Rate Sensitivities for outstanding exposure (impact on increase in 2%)    (` in Lacs)

Currency
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at

31st March, 2019

INR  (3,420)  2,771

EUR  (1,712)  (1,809)

USD  (3,917)  (3,505)

Figures in brackets indicate decrease in profit

In some cases, the Group  has entered into cross currency swap and interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. The Group's 
profit and loss and equity is not exposed to interest rate sensitivity to that extent.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for assets and liabilities at the end of 
the reporting period. For floating rate assets and liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liabilities/assets 
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year and the rates are reset as per the applicable reset 
dates.

Note: If the rate is decreased by 2%, profit of the group will increase by an equal amount.

iii. Price risk

Equity price risk is related to change in market reference price of investments in equity securities held by the Group. The fair value of 
quoted investments held by the Group exposes the Group to equity price risks. In general, these investments are not held for trading 
purposes. The fair value of quoted investments in equity, classified as fair value through Profit and Loss/ fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income as at 31st March, 2020 is ` 7,018 Lacs (31st March, 2019: ` 23,389 Lacs)

A 10% change in equity prices of such securities held as at 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019  would result in an impact of
` 702 Lacs in 31st March, 2020 (31st March, 2019 ` 2,339 Lacs).
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b)) Liquidity riskq y          

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they fall due, or will have 
to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows which is inherent in all finance driven
organisations and can be affected by a range of Group-specific and market-wide events.

Liquidity risk management :  (` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

On 

demand  

Less than 

3 months

 3 to 12 

months 

 >12 

months 

 Total  On 

demand  

Less than 

3 months

 3 to 12 

months  

 >12 

months 

 Total 

A: Financial Assets

i) Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

 316  39,743  -  -  40,059  272  31,021  -  -  31,293 

ii) Bank Balance other 
than (i) above

 36  31,594  94,363  5,987  1,31,980  52  46,337  1,00,003  24,816  1,71,208 

iii) Derivative Financial 
Instruments

 -  29,992  -  -  29,992  2,526  5,716  -  -  8,242 

iv) Trade & Other 
Receivables

 -  18,815  21  160  18,996  -  41,669  -  -  41,669

v) Loans*  -  1,74,144  5,33,357  23,58,000  30,65,501  -  4,80,999  5,00,882  19,68,532  29,50,413 

vi) Investments  -  2,315  5,728  1,01,077  1,09,120  -  7,932  75,640  1,35,912  2,19,484 

vii) Other Financial 
Assets

 4  14,187  10,214  70,218  94,623  -  14,119  63,224  21,617  98,960 

Total  356 3,10,790  6,43,683 25,35,442 34,90,271  2,850 6,27,793  7,39,749 21,50,877 35,21,269

B: Financial Liabilities

i) Derivative Financial 
Instruments

 -  4,146  -  -  4,146  423  5,302  -  -  5,725 

ii) Trade Payables  -  56,896  55,847  689  1,13,432  -  59,071  98,297  11,324  1,68,692 

iii) Borrowings#  -  4,77,748  17,19,298  10,45,487  32,42,533  -  4,63,514  12,13,027  17,04,703  33,81,244 

iv) Lease Liability  -  173  548  2,842  3,563  -  -  -  -  - 

v) Other Financial 
Liabilities

 36  7,214  5,328  21,843  34,421  302  12,155  3,776  45,805  62,038 

Total  36 5,46,177 17,81,021 10,70,861 33,98,095  725 5,40,042 13,15,100 17,61,832 36,17,699

# This includes working capital facilities considered in over 6 months and upto 1 year bucket based on contractual terms, however, 
as per the prevalent practice, these facilities are renewed on a year to year basis and therefore, are revolving in nature.

* The subsidiary company, i.e. Srei Equipment Finance Limited  has decided to exercise put option (right to recall the loan under
the loan agreement) in respect of certain loans given by it, amounting to ` 3,78,104 as at  31st March, 2020, which have been 
considered in "Loans" above while arriving at the maturity pattern. The Company had decided to exercise put option (right to recall
the loan under the loan agreement) in respect of certain loans given it, amounting to ` 365,832 Lacs as at 31st March, 2019, which 
had been considered in "Loans" above while arriving at the maturity pattern. Details in respect of the same are as follows:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

 On 

demand  

Less than 

3 months

3 to 12 

months 

 >12 

months 

Total On 

demand  

Less than 

3 months

3 to 12 

months  

 >12 

months 

 Total 

Loans -    -   1,91,131 1,86,973  3,78,104  -    95,404  1,11,827 1,58,601  3,65,832 

 -    -    1,91,131  1,86,973  3,78,104  -    95,404  1,11,827  1,58,601  3,65,832 
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c) Credit risk)          

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligations.          

Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk department of the Group’s independent Risk Controlling Unit. It is their responsibility to 
review and manage credit risk, including environmental and social risk for all types of counterparties. Credit risk consists of line f
credit risk managers who are responsible for their business lines and manage specific portfolios and experts who support both the
line credit risk manager, as well as the business with tools like credit risk systems, policies, models and reporting.

The Group conducts an industry analysis to determine the risk level of each industry which the Group is exposed to. The Group also 
performs portfolio analysis to analyze the correlations between different exposures, assess risk at an overall portfolio, and assess 
concentration risks in the portfolio. The Group also conducts stress testing at portfolio level to assess the impact on stress situations
on the Group's portfolio. The corrective action taken by the Group includes obtaining collaterals which are easy to liquidate, which
have high marketability and re-sale value.

36. Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety :

(i) The group has also carried out securitisation transactions wherein it has securitised loans. Even though the loan assets have been
securitised, the Company still holds the right (legal as well as contractual) to recover the entire overdue balance in respect of these
loan assets. Further, the returns are dependent on the realisation from the securitised loan assets, leading to company bearing the 
risk of non-realisation from the pool.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their
entirety and associated liabilities.

(` in Lacs) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Carrying amount of assets  49,525  1,18,779 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities  52,169  1,23,033 

Fair value of assets  50,181  1,20,331 

Fair value of associated liabilities  52,468  1,21,552 

(ii) Assignment of Non-Performing( ) g g Loan Assets to Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC):p y ( )

The group has carried out an assignment transaction wherein it has assigned Non-Performing Loan Accounts to an Asset 
Reconstruction Company by transferring the loan assets to a Special Purpose Entity and subscribed to 85% of the total value of 
security receipts issued by the Trust. Even though the loan assets have been assigned, the group still holds the right (legal as well
as contractual) to recover the entire overdue balance in respect of these loan assets. Further, the returns from the Security Receipts 
are dependent on the realisation from the assigned loan assets, leading to group bearing the risk of non-realisation from the pool to 
the extent of its investment in Security Receipts.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their 
entirety and associated liabilities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd.)

279Annual Report 2019-20



(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

Carrying amount of assets  1,573  20,400

Carrying amount of associated liabilities  -    -  

Fair value of assets  1,573  20,400

Fair value of associated liabilities  -    -   

37. Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

The Group obtained the following non-financial assets during the year by taking possession of assets held as security against loans
or third party security and held at the year end. The Group’s policy is to determine whether such asset can be best used for its 
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relevant 
asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling 
is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets acquired in satisfaction of debt at their fair value or carrying value, 
whichever is lower. The Group’s policy is to realise collateral on a timely basis.

The table below outlines the nature and values of assets acquired in satisfaction of debt obtained during the year.

(` in Lacs) 

Particulars 19-20 18-19

Land  -  2,265

Others  36,854  15,391

Total assets obtained by taking possession of collateral  36,854  17,656

38. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plansp

The Group has recognised, in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020 an amount of ` 943
Lacs (Previous year ` 1,112 Lacs) as expenses under defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit plansp

(A) Gratuity Fund :-

The Group makes contributions to Defined Benefit Plans for qualifying employees. The scheme is funded by way of separate
irrevocable trust. The fund is managed internally by the Group. These Plans are administered through approved Trusts, which 
operate in accordance with the Trust Deeds, Rules and applicable Statutes. The concerned Trusts are managed by Trustees who
provide strategic guidance with regard to the management of their investments and liabilities and also periodically review their
performance. The Trustees of the gratuity scheme for the employees of the Group have interested the administration of the scheme
to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).

The liabilities arising in the Defined Benefit Schemes are determined in accordance with the advice of independent, professionally 
qualified actuaries, using the projected unit credit method. The Group makes regular contributions to these Employee Benefit Plans.
Additional contributions are made to these plans as and when required based on actuarial valuation. Some Group companies also
participate in these Plans. These participating Group companies make contributions to the Plans for their respective employees on
a uniform basis and each entity ascertains their obligation through actuarial valuation. The net Defined benefit cost is recognised by
these companies in their respective Financial Statements.

Under the Gratuity plan, every employee is entitled to gratuity, being higher of the amount, calculated under the Group's plan (based 
on last monthly salary and number of years of service) or calculations as laid down under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Gratuity 
is payable on death / retirement / termination and the benefit vests after 5 year of continuous service.    
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Risk Management

The Defined Benefit Plans expose the Group to risk of actuarial deficit arising out of interest rate risk, salary inflation risk and
demographic risk.

(a) Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall,
the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

(b) Salary Inflation risk: Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(c) Demographic Risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality,
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon 
the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the 
financial analysis the retirement benefit of short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to long service employee.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31st
March, 2020.

38.1 Particulars in respect of employee benefits of the Group are as follows :- 

(` in Lacs) 

Description

 Gratuity Leave  

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at 

31st March, 

2019

As at  

31st March, 

2020 

As at 

31st March, 

2019 

Change in the defined benefit obligation

Present Value of Obligation at the Beginning of the Year  1,676  1,595  832  946 

Current Service Cost  222  266  145  109 

Interest Cost  102  112  34  47 

Past Service Cost - Plan Amendments - - - -

Acquisitions Cost / credit  -    -    -    -   

Actuarial (gain)/loss  (123)  13  281  409 

Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions  104  13  46  6

Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions  -    -  -    - 

Adjustment on disposal / cessation of Subsidiaries -  (102) -  (41)

Benefits paid  (452)  (221)  (661)  (644)

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Year  1,529  1,676  677  832 

Change in plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Year  1,003  1,092  NA  NA 

Expected return on Plan Assets  -    3  NA  NA 

Interest income on Plan Assets  57  73  NA  NA 

Acquisitions Cost/credit  -    -  NA  NA 

Contributions by the Employer  103  61  NA  NA 

Return on Plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate  (13)  -    NA  NA 

Adjustment on disposal / cessation of Subsidiaries  -  (15)  NA  NA 

Benefits paid  (433)  (211) NA NA 

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the Year  717 1,003  NA  NA 
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Basis used to determine the Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

The expected return on plan assets is determined based on government bond rate.  (` in Lacs) 

Description

 Gratuity Leave  

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at

31st March, 

2019

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at

31st March, 

2019

Amount recognised in Consolidated Balance Sheet consists of:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the Year 717  1,003 - -

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Year  1,529  1,676  677  832

Net (Asset)/Liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
in respect of defined benefits

 812  673  677  (316)

(` in Lacs)

Description

 Gratuity Leave

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at 

31st March,

2019

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at 

31st March,

2019

Expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of 

profit and loss consists of:

Employee benefits expenses:

Current Service cost  222  266  145  109 

Past Service Cost - Plan Amendments  -  -  -   

Net Interest cost  40  37  34  47 

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss  -    -    325  415 

Total [A]  262  303  504  571 

Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial  (Gain) / Loss from experience adjustments  (84)  5  13  -  

Actuarial  (Gain) / Loss from financial assumptions  65  21  (13)  -   

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest cost)

 18  3  (1)  -  

Total [B]  (1)  29  (1)  -   

Expense recognised during the year [A+B]  261  332  503  571 

38.2 Particulars of Investment Details of Plan Assets are as follows :

Description

 Gratuity 

 % Invested 

Leave

 % Invested 

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at 

31st March,

2019

As at  

31st March, 

2020

As at 

31st March, 

2019

Investment Details of Plan Assets

Schemes of insurance- conventional products 100% 100% Not Applicable

Total 100% 100%

38.3 Principal Assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate per annum 6.70% 7.50% 6.70% 7.15%

Salary escalation rate per annum 5.00% 10.00% 5.00% 10.00%
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38.4 The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employee market.

38.5 Sensitivity Analysis        

The Sensitivity Analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact
of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant,
in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For
presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented
above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.

Description

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

 Gratuity Leave  Gratuity Leave

% (` in Lacs) % (` in Lacs) % (` in Lacs) % (` in Lacs)

Discount Rate + 100 basis points -9.37%  (144) -9.38%  (63) -10.02%  (160) -10.20%  (82)

Discount Rate - 100 basis points 10.85%  167 10.97%  74 11.70%  187 11.98%  96

Salary Increase Rate + 1% 9.19%  141 11.04%  75 8.75%  140 11.98%  96

Salary Increase Rate – 1% -8.26%  (127) -9.59%  (65) -8.14%  (130) -10.39%  (83)

38.6 Maturity Analysis Of The Benefit Payments (` in Lacs)

Expected payment for future years

As at  

31st March, 2020

As at 

31st March, 2019

 Gratuity Leave  Gratuity Leave 

Year 1  42  22  42  24

Year 2  83  31  57  26

Year 3  134  73  103  41

Year 4  134  46  150  62

Year 5  112  36  161  48

Next 5 Years  977  344  1,116  345

    

38.7 Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations: 9 years (Previous year: 13 years).
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39. Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 - "Related Party Disclosures"

Related Parties:

Holding Company: Country of Origin

Adisri Commercial Private Limited India

Subsidiary of Holding Company: Country of Origin

Srei Factors Private Limited (w.e.f. 02.01.2019) India

Associates & Related Subsidiaries: Country of Origin

E Village Kendra Limited (formerly Sahaj e-Village Limited) (ceased to be an Associate w.e.f. 
01.01.2020)

India

Attivo Economic Zone (Mumbai) Private Limited (ceased to be Associate w.e.f. 29.09.2018) India

IIS International Infrastructure Services GmbH, Germany (Formerly Srei International Infrastructure 
Services GmbH, Germany)

Germany

AO International Infrastructure Services, Russia (Formerly AO Srei Leasing, Russia), (Subsidiary of 
IIS International Infrastructure Services GmbH, Germany)

Russia

Sahaj Retail Limited (Subsidiary of E Village Kendra Limited) India

Rural Innovation Labs Pvt. Ltd (ceased to be Subsidiary of E Village Kendra Limited w.e.f. 01.10.2018) India

Others :

Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited Employees Gratuity Fund

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

Name Designation

Mr. Hemant Kanoria Chairman

Mr. Sameer Sawhney (upto 05.09.2018) Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Bhutoria (w.e.f. 16.11.2018) Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sandeep Lakhotia Company Secretary

Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sultania (w.e.f. 05.07.2018) Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sanjeev Sancheti (from 28.04.2018 to 19.05.2019) Chief Strategy Officer

Mr. Chandrasekhar Mukherjee# Group Chief People Officer

Mr. Samir Kumar Kejriwal# Senior Vice President

Mr. Debashis Ghosh# Internal Auditor

Mr. Shashi Bhushan Tiwari (w.e.f. 20.05.2019) Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Malay Mukherjee Independent Director

Mr. Srinivasachari Rajagopal Independent Director

Mr. Shyamalendu Chatterjee Independent Director

Dr. Punita Kumar Sinha Independent Director

Mr. Ram Krishna Agarwal Independent Director

Mr. Sunil Kanoria Vice Chairman (Non
Executive Director)

Dr. Tamali Sengupta (upto 26.10.2017, reappointed w.e.f. 04.02.2019) Independent Director

Mr. Balaji Viswanathan Swaminathan (w.e.f. 05.09.2018 upto 13.11.2019) Non Executive & Non
Independent Director

#Designated as KMP from 28.04.2018 to 03.02.2019  
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Details of Related Party Transactions:  (` in Lacs)

Name of related party & 

Nature of relationship
Nature of Transactions

For the Year 

ended

Balance  

As at

For the Year 

ended

Balance 

As at

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

(A) Holding Company :

Adisri Commerical Private 
Limited

Dividend Paid  -    -   1,518  -   

(B) Associates:

E Village Kendra Limited
(formerly Sahaj e-Village
Limited) (ceased to be an
Associate w.e.f. 01.01.2020)

Loan Advanced  -    -    2,787  14,878 

Refund of Loan Advanced  14,878  -    -    -   

Rental Received  -    -    85  148 

Purchase of Services (Excluding Tax)  68 -    13  155 

Sale of Receivables  -    -   -   -   

Interest Received on Loan 323  -   1,242  -   

Interest Paid on Margin Money  -  -  12  -

Financial Guarantee Income  84  -  32  -

Financial Guarantee Expenses  4  -  8  -

Deposit Received  -  -  770  152

Deposit Refunded  152  -    618  -

Balance Receivable-Interest accrued
but not due (Net of TDS)

 -    -    -    4

Financial Guarantee Contract Liability  -    -    -    84 

Corporate Guarantee to the
extent of facility outstanding
[Guarantee Amount ` Nil, 31 March, 
2019: ` 9,544 Lacs]

 -    -    -    407 

Put Option to Bank against
loan facility outstanding
[Put Option Amount - ` Nil, 31st
March, 2019: ` 1,500 Lacs)

 -    -    -    1,193 

Guarantee of Put option against Loan 
facility closed

 1,500  -    1,000  -   

Corporate Guarantee Closed  9,544  -    -    -   

Commitment against credit facility
closed

 -    -    380  -   

Attivo Economic Zone 
(Mumbai) Private Limited
(ceased to be Associate w.e.f. 
29.09.2018)

Loan Advanced  -    2,882

Interest Received on Loan  -    -    423  -   

Rural Innovation Labs Pvt. 
Ltd (ceased to be Subsidiary 
of Sahaj e-Village Ltd. w.e.f. 
01.10.2018)

Loan Advanced  -    -    110  -   

Refund of Loan Advanced  -    -    500  -   

Interest Received on Loan  -    -    28  -   
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(C) Remuneration to Key Management Personnel (KMP):     

Mr. Hemant Kanoria Remuneration 744  59  698  46 

Commission  -    -    306  306

Dividend Paid - - 4 -

Mr. Sandeep Lakhotia Remuneration  94  -    95  -   

Dividend Paid  -    -    3  -   

Mr. Sameer Sawhney (upto
05.09.2018)

Remuneration  -    -    66  -   

Mr. Rakesh Bhutoria (w.e.f. 
16.11.2018)

Remuneration  312  -    159  -   

Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sultania 
(w.e.f. 05.07.2018)

Remuneration  79  -    67  -   

Mr. Sanjeev Sancheti (from
28.04.2018 to 19.05.2019)

Remuneration  20  -    152  -   

Dividend Paid  -    -    3  -   

Mr. Chandrasekhar
Mukherjee (from 28.04.2018
to 03.02.2019)

Remuneration  -    -    207  -   

Mr. Samir Kumar Kejriwal
(from 28.04.2018 to
03.02.2019)

Remuneration  -    -    39  -   

Dividend Paid  -    -    0.04  -   

Mr. Debashis Ghosh Dividend Paid  -    -    0.14  -   

Mr. Shashi Bhushan Tiwari
(w.e.f. 20.05.2019)

Consultancy  53  -    -    -   

Mr. Sunil Kanoria Remuneration  498  30  455  27 

Commission Paid  -    -    314  314 

Dividend Paid - -  18 -

Sitting Fees  11  -    11  -  

Mr. Malay Mukherjee Commission Paid  -    -    8  8

Sitting Fees  8 -  8 -

Mr. S.Rajagopal Commission Paid  -    -    8  8 

Sitting Fees  8  -    9  -  

Mr. S.Chatterjee Commission Paid - -  8  8

Sitting Fees  13  -    30  -   

Dr. Punita Kumar Sinha Commission Paid - -  8  8

Sitting Fees  7  -    8  -  

Mr. Ram Krishna Agarwal Commission Paid  -    -    8  8 

Sitting Fees 7 - 7 -

Dr. Tamali Sengupta Sitting Fees  9  -    1  -   

Mr. Balaji Viswanathan 
Swaminathan (w.e.f. 
05.09.2018)

Sitting Fees  4  -    4  -   

Consultancy  134  -    70  -   

Loan Advanced - -  75  75

Refund of Loan Advanced  75  -    -    -   

Interest Received on Loan  9  -    -    -   

   

(` in Lacs)

Name of related party & 

Nature of relationship
Nature of Transactions

For the Year 

ended

Balance  

As at

For the Year 

ended

Balance

As at

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
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(D) Transaction with Relative of KMP:

Mr. Anant Raj Kanoria (Son
of Mr. Sunil Kanoria)

Consultancy  -    -    6  -   

(E) Others :

Srei Infrastructure Finance 
Limited Employees Gratuity 
Fund

Contribution towards Gratuity  103  -    -    -   

(F)

(i) The remuneration paid by the Company to its Chairman during the year is in excess of the limits laid down under Section 197 of 
the Act, for which the Company will take an approval from shareholders through a Special Resolution in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.

(ii) The remuneration paid by one of the subsidiary i.e. Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL), to its Chairman, Vice Chairman and
Managing Director during the year is in excess of the limits laid down under sub-section (3) of Section 197 of the  Companies Act, 
2013, for which SEFL will take an approval from shareholders through a Special Resolution in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(G) Compensation to KMPs:   (` in Lacs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

 Short-term benefit  1,853  2,582 

 Other long-term employee benefit  38  60

 Post-employment benefit  204  209

40. LEASES      

a. In the capacity of Lessee

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” effective from 1st April, 2019 which resulted in recognition of Right-of-use Assets 
and Lease Liability each amounting to ` 5,153 Lacs as at 1st April, 2019. Accordingly, the comparative figures have not been
retrospectively restated or adjusted. During the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases, where the 
Group is lessee, has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the Right-of-use Assets and finance cost 
for interest accrued on Lease Liability. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year 
ended 31st March, 2019. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per 
share.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on
the date of initial application

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is
applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

(i) The Group has certain cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises, which range between 11 months to 15
years and are usually renewable by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms. Some of these lease agreements have rent
escalation upto 5% p.a. or 10% p.a. on renewals.    

Name of related party & 

Nature of relationship
Nature of Transactions

For the Year 

ended

Balance  

As at

For the Year 

ended

Balance

As at

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

(` in Lacs)
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(ii) Disclosure in accordance to Ind AS 116 is as below: (` in Lacs)

No. Particulars 19-20 18-19

a Short term lease payment  2,023 

#

b Expense relating to leases of low-value assets  -   

c Variance lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liability  -   

d Income from subleasing right of use assets  688 

e Total Cash outflow for leases  3,411 

f Interest expense on Lease liability  459 

# Ind AS 116 is applicable w.e.f. 01.04.2019, therefore, figure of previous year is not available on similar basis.

g. The future lease payments considered for lease liability on an undiscounted basis are as follows:  
(` in Lacs)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020

Less than one year  1,264

One to five years  3,056

More than five years  91 

Total  4,411 

h. Details of right of use assets and its movement is as below:    

(` in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 

1st April, 2019

Additions Adjustment As at  

31st March, 

2020

Office Premises:

Right of use Assets  5,153  -    682  4,471

Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation  -    1,105  5  1,100

Net Carrying amount  3,371 

b.  In the capacity of Lessor     

(i) The Group has given assets on Operating lease for periods ranging between 1 to 20 years. Some of the agreements were 
cancellable. Some of the arrangements have clauses for contingent rent. Total contingent rent recognized as income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31st, 2020 is amounting to ` 494 Lacs (As at March 31st, 2019 : `
895 Lacs)

(ii) The Group also has cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises, which range between 1 to 3 years and are 
usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

(iii) Details of rental income towards operating lease for assets and office premises including sublease are as follows:
(` in Lacs)

Particulars 19-20 18-19

Rental Income on the basis of earnings of the Lessee  456  850

Others  1,20,254  1,27,139 

Total Rental Income  1,20,710  1,27,989 
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(iv) Details of fixed future lease receivable towards operating lease for assets and office premises are as follows:

(` in Lacs)

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2019

Within 1 year  86,864  1,29,164 

1-2 year  72,183  85,700

2-3 year  34,515  71,747

3-4 year  11,518  34,083

4-5 year  2,678  11,202

> 5 year  322  2,643

Total  2,08,080  3,34,539

  

41. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

(` in Lacs) 

Assets

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Within 12 

Months

After 12 

Months

Total Within 12 

Months

After 12 

Months

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents  40,059  -  40,059  31,293  -  31,293 

Bank Balance other than above  1,25,993  5,987  1,31,980  1,46,391  24,817  1,71,208 

Derivative Financial Instruments  29,992  -  29,992  8,242  -  8,242 

Trade Receivables  18,039  109  18,148  28,236  -  28,236

Other Receivable  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Loans *  6,80,207  22,22,975  29,03,182  9,58,542  18,55,861  28,14,403 

Investments  8,042  1,01,078  1,09,120  83,571  1,28,282  2,11,853 

Other Financial Assets  23,732  69,479  93,211  71,854  20,022  91,876 

Inventories  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Current Tax Assets (Net)  14,454  6,442  20,896  -  14,109  14,109

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  -  23,261  23,261  -  19,417  19,417

Investment Property  -  1,765  1,765  -  1,801  1,801 

Property, Plant and Equipment  -  3,66,466  3,66,466  -  5,01,178  5,01,178 

Capital Work-in-Progress  -  233  233  -  489  489 

Rights of Use - Assets  47  3,324  3,371  -  -  - 

Other Intangible Assets  -  452  452  -  570  570 

Other Non-Financial Assets  53,824  2,599  56,423  1,07,497  17,708  1,25,205 
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(` in Lacs)

Liabilities

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Within 12 

Months

After 12 

Months

Total Within 12 

Months

After 12 

Months

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments  4,146  -  4,146  5,725  -  5,725

Trade Payables  1,12,743  689  1,13,432  1,57,368  11,324  1,68,692 

Debt Securities  49,748  2,12,977  2,62,725  1,20,790  2,40,562  3,61,352

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  21,18,591  5,65,777  26,84,368  14,90,966  11,78,149  26,69,115 

Subordinated Liabilities  24,950  2,59,861  2,84,811  60,064  2,75,547  3,35,611 

Lease Liability  720  2,843  3,563  -  -  - 

Other Financial Liabilities  12,286  17,912  30,198  15,516  33,340  48,856 

Provisions  331  1,684  2,015  444  1,652  2,096

Other Non-Financial Liabilities  6,451  5,374  11,825  4,083  13,986  18,069 

* The subsidiary company, i.e. Srei Equipment Finance Limited has decided to exercise put option (right to recall the loan under 
the loan agreement) in respect of certain loans given by it, amounting to ` 3,78,104 as at 31st March, 2020, which have been
considered in "Loans" above while arriving at the maturity pattern. The Company had decided to exercise put option (right to recall 
the loan under the loan agreement) in respect of certain loans given it, amounting to ` 365,832 Lacs as at 31st March, 2019, which
had been considered in "Loans" above while arriving at the maturity pattern. Details in respect of the same are as follows:

(` in Lacs)

Assets

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Within 12 

Months

After 12  

Months

Total Within 12

Months

After 12

Months

Total

Loans  1,91,131  1,86,973  3,78,104  2,07,231  1,58,601  3,65,832 
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42. Segment Reporting        

The Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM) assess the financial performance and position of  and makes strategic decisions.
Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit similarities in nature of 
services offered.

Segment wise details (information provided in respect of revenue items for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and in respect of 
assets/ liabilities as at 31st March, 2020 – denoted as “CY” below, previous year denoted as “PY”) as required by Ind AS - 108, 
“Operating Segments” are as under:-

(` in Lacs)

Particulars
Financial Services

Infrastructure Equipment 

Services
Others Total

CY PY CY PY CY PY CY PY

Gross Segment Revenue  6,11,805  6,28,488  -  31,781  320  242  6,12,125  6,60,511 

Less:  Inter Segment Revenue  331  1,845  -  3,536  312  156  643  5,537 

Net Segment Revenue  6,11,474  6,26,643  -  28,245  8  86  6,11,482  6,54,974 

Segment Result before 
Interest & Finance Charges

 3,93,179  4,20,366  -  5,163  (61)  (44)  3,93,118  4,25,485 

Interest & Finance Charges  3,78,947  3,57,786  -  906  -  5  3,78,947  3,58,697

Tax Expenses  5,296  18,082

Share of Profit/ (Loss) of 
Associates

 -  (28)

Profit After Tax  8,875  48,678

Segment Assets  37,76,638  39,97,956 -  -  1,929  2,021  37,78,567  39,99,977 

Unallocable Assets  20,758  20,669 

Total Assets  37,76,638  39,97,956  -  -  1,929  2,021  37,99,325  40,20,646

Segment Liabilities  33,97,038  36,09,439  -  9  25  33,97,047  36,09,464 

Unallocable Liabilities  36  52 

Total Liabilities  33,97,038  36,09,439  -  -  9  25  33,97,083  36,09,516 

Capital Expenditures  29,087  1,05,730  -  60  -  -  29,087  1,05,790

Depreciation, Amortisation
and Impairment

 78,457  81,019  -  446  45  45  78,502  81,510 

Other Non-Cash Expenditure  41,235  47,366 

       

42.1 Adjustment on disposal/cessation of Subsidiaries, Step-down Subsidiaries and Associate is ̀  1,222 Lacs (Previous year: ` 8,085
Lacs). It has been accounted for as per Ind AS 110, "Consolidated Financial Statements".    

43. Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associate

The Company completed the sale of the controlling stake in the following subsidiaries : 

a) Quippo Energy Limited (ceased to be a subsidiary w.e.f 28.03.2019)  

b) Quippo Oil & Gas Infrastructure Limited (ceased to be a subsidiary w.e.f 31.03.2019) 

  

The Company disposed its following associates: 

a) Attivo Economic Zone (Mumbai) Private Limited on 29.09.2018.  

b) E Village Kendra Limited (formerly Sahaj e-Village Limited) on 01.01.2020  
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i) Details of Net Assets of Subsidiaries disposed off:    (` in Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Total Assets (A)  -    37,842 

Total Liabilities (B)  -    37,329 

Net assets disposed off (A-B)  -    513

  

ii) Gain / (Loss) on disposal of Subsidiaries     (` in Lacs) 

2019-20 2018-19

Sale Consideration - In Cash  -  513 

Less : Net Assets disposed off  -  750

Total  -  (237)

Adjustments in respect of :

Elimination of unrealised profits and pre-acquisition profits  -  10,661 

Impairment and Fair Value Adjustments  -  (2,335)

Gain on disposal  -  8,089

  

iii) Gain / (Loss) on disposal of Associate  (` in Lacs) 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate now reversed as a result of disposal  1,222  (4)

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of Associate  1,222  (4)
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45. The financial statements of IIS International Infrastructure Services GmbH, Germany (Formerly Srei International Infrastructure 
Services GmbH, Germany) (IIS), a foreign associate company of the Company has been prepared as per IFRS, generally accepted 
accounting principles followed in the country of incorporation of the foreign associate company. As there are no material differences 
between such financial statements as per IFRS and as per Ind AS, no adjustments have been considered necessary.

46. The Board of Directors of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Srei Equipment Finance Limited (“SEFL”) at their respective
meetings held on 4th July, 2019 approved the transfer of Lending Business, Interest Earning Business & Lease Business of the 
Company together with associated employees, assets & liabilities (including liabilities towards issued & outstanding non - convertible 
debentures) (the “Transferred Undertaking”), as a going concern by way of slump exchange to SEFL through a Business Transfer
Agreement (“BTA”), in exchange of fully paid up equity shares to be issued and allotted by SEFL, subject to all necessary approvals.
Pursuant to this, the Company signed BTA on  16th August, 2019 and an amendment to the, aforesaid, BTA on 14th November, 2019
with SEFL, pursuant to which it has entered into various assignment agreements, in connection with the Transferred Undertaking, 
with SEFL to give effect of the slump exchange and accordingly the Company and SEFL has passed the relevant accounting entries
in their respective books of account effective 1st October, 2019, after receiving the approval of the shareholders, debenture trustees, 
few lenders, stock exchanges and in-principle approval from some of the domestic lenders including lead banks. One of debenture 
holders of SEFL holding debentures amounting to ` 75 crores has objected to the slump exchange. The consent, or otherwise,
of other lenders is still awaited. Pending the approvals as stated above, the Company had accounted for the slump exchange
transaction on 1st October, 2019, as stated above. The Company has obtained expert legal and accounting opinions in relation to 
the accounting of the Slump Exchange Transaction which confirms that the accounting treatment so given is in accordance with the 
relevant Ind AS and the underlying guidance and frame work.

47. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant impact and volatility in global 
and Indian financial markets and slowdown in economic activities. On 24th March, 2020, the Indian Government announced a strict
21-day lock-down, which has been extended from time to time and which is still continued to be extended with or without relaxations
across the country based on severity of the spread at local levels. The extent to which Covid-19 will impact  the operations and
business of the Company and its subsidiaries is dependent on the future developments, which is not ascertainable at this point of 
time.

48. The subsidiary company i.e. Srei Equipment Finance Limited, has applied moratorium on borrowings in accordance with
COVID-19 Regulatory Package announced by RBI and the approval for the same is under process with a few lenders. In view of this, 
such deferment of dues has not been considered as default by the subsidiary company.

49. Figures pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged / regrouped, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with 
those of current year.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048
    
Manoj Daga  Hemant Kanoria Shyamalendu Chatterjee

Partner  Chairman Director
Membership No. 048523
    
    Rakesh Kumar Bhutoria Sandeep Kumar Sultania Sandeep Lakhotia

    Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, 28th July, 2020   Kolkata, 28th July, 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contd.)
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FORM AOC-1 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act , 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures   (` In Lacs)

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures IIS International Infrastructure Services 

GmbH

Relationship Associate

1. Latest Balance Sheet date Mar 31, 2020

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired  21.06.2016 

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the period end

No. NA3

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture NIL4

Extent of Holding (in percentage) 49.13%

4. Description of how there is significant influence Control of 
49.13% of Total Share Capital

 5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated  NA 

 6. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest Balance Sheet  (3,381.61)

 7. Profit/(Loss) for the period 

 i.  Considered in Consolidation -

 ii. Not Considered in Consolidation  (1,778.44)

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations:  None   

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the period:

(i) E Village Kendra Limited (ceased to be Associate w.e.f  01.01.2020) - sold     

3. There is no system of issuance of distinctive shares in the country of registration.

4. IIS International Infrastructure Services GmbH4 has filed for liquidation on 17th September, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

    

  Hemant Kanoria Shyamalendu Chatterjee

    Chairman Director
DIN: 00193015 DIN : 00048249

   Rakesh Bhutoria Sandeep Lakhotia Sandeep Kumar Sultania

    Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

   Kolkata, 28th July, 2020
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Cautionary Statement 
This report contains forward-looking statement, which may be identified by their use of words like ‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, 

‘anticipates’, ‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other words of similar meaning. All statements that address 

expectations or projections about the future, including but not limited to statements about the Company’s strategy for 

growth, product development, market position, expenditures and financial results are forward-looking statements. Forward-

looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee 

that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised. The Company’s actual results, performance or 

achievements could thus differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements. The Company 

assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 

developments, information or events.
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